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BEE WK D

The year of 2017 has been mixing. Despite signs of stabilisation,
operating environment remained challenging as the pressures posed by
the global economic downturn and the continued economic transition
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") are set to linger. Based
on the information released by the World Bank Group, global growth
is firming and contributing to an improvement in confidence. A
recovery in industrial activity has coincided with a pickup in global
trade, after over two years of marked weakness. Despite there have
been challenges with unfortunate terrorist events affecting tourism
and businesses in global markets, as well as political uncertainly
from the Trump’s effects and the tension between North Korea and
the United States, global Gross Domestic Product (“GDP") growth is
accelerated to 3.0% in 2017.

On the other hand, with the same pace as in the previous period
while markets expected a 6.8% expansion on the PRC economy,
its GDP advanced 6.9% year-on-year in 2017, reflecting a positive
growth of about 0.2% as compared to 2016. The growth remained
at its strongest level since the third quarter of 2015, as the industrial
output and retail sales picked up while the fixed asset investment
remained strong. In the meanwhile, Hong Kong'’s economy expanded
moderately by 3.8% year-on-year and its GDP for 2017 is expected to
grow by 3.0% to 4.0% in real terms, as adjusted downwards due to

the slowdown in the local economy.

In view of 2017, total visitors arrivals to Hong Kong amounted to
approximately 58.5 million, representing an increase of 3.2%, after
dropping by 4.5% in 2016, which accounting for 76.0% of the total
were visitors from Mainland China, and those visitors from Mainland
China also increased by 3.9% year-on-year, after dropping by 6.7%
in 2016. Visitors from the traditional short haul markets (excluding
Mainland China) increased by 2.9% in 2017 while those form the
traditional haul markets remained stable. Of the total visitors arrivals,
overnight visitors accounted for approximately 27.9 million, which
was an increase of 5.0% when compared on a year-on-year basis. The
average hotel room occupancy level for all the surveyed hotels under
different categories in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December
2017 increased from 87.0% to 89.3%, recorded the fair occupancy
gains. Compared to occupancy, the improvement in room rates lagged
behind. The overall room rate fell marginally by approximately 3.6%

yearly decline in 2017.

Annual Report 2017

T LFRASE -BELRBRETR
RERFEDATHRE > REERRREHE
FETRLIERNRPEARLAME (5
B MBS EER RS ESE - REE
RRTEEERNER  RHERBRERA
BEORT - REBEMFENBZRBEE
% TEEPDER  REBLRMEZOIT -
HAE YT EIREXEMRERH G EENZM
TELDNE - N LEREFERENK
JENHEE FRIA R AL 5 X B ) B R B R -
REBANEEREERER _T—+tF L

£3.0% °

S—AHE - —AF miHEBAPELER
Be8%MiER#FK R-ZT—+tHFrERE
EBELEA69% RBE_-ZT—XFEmmE
R#02% - WWRIFAKFE T —HFE=
FUARzHERKTE  THRIXEEREZE
HERA NMEBTEERENAARY - £
LEARE  BELERFRMER3IS% R
T+ FrAWEEREBENE G ETEHE
R3.0%%E4.0%  JTEPARBLBERENE
BURHhAEEBER THAE -

ER_ZT-—LtF FAKRELEEY
58,500,000 AKX » # — T — NE T K4.5%
% EF3.2%  FEAMKREHEEARE AR
#976.0% MABAMABREABE-Z
—RNFET Y6 T%E - TMIRF EA3.9% B
—E—+HF REBERESMETS RS
A (TBRIER) EM2.9% F MEKBEEH
REWEMISZREABBER TR L5
MREBEF - BREIRE ABIE 427,900,000
AR BREEAS0% - HE_ZT—+F+=
A=+—HLFE BETRENZAER
SHBE 2 FHBIEREEAE EB87.0%E i
%£89.3% * AEEFABIME o BALEKLEER -
FEEABAIKRERE BERBEEN_Z—+
FIRFMBHA3.6% °



Given the challenging business environment, but with the gradual
recovery in the tourist markets, the Group had satisfactory
performance during the year under review, reported stable business
development with steady performance in respect of its overall hotel
investment. Turnover of the Group attained HK$252.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017, represented an increase of 4.1%
as compared to HK$242.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
was a loss of HK$125.2 million (Year ended 31 December 2016: loss
of HK$93.2 million) which was mainly attributable to gross profit of
HK$100.7 million (Year ended 31 December 2016: gross profit of
HK$97.6 million); administrative expenses of HK$126.2 million (Year
ended 31 December 2016: HK$159.3 million); distribution and selling
expenses of HK$1.2 million (Year ended 31 December 2016: HK$1.5
million); finance costs of HK$1.1 million (Year ended 31 December
2016: HK$2.3 million); equity-settled share-based payment expenses of
HK$13.7 million (Year ended 31 December 2016: nil); impairment loss
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment of HK$14.8
million (Year ended 31 December 2016: nil); decrease in fair value on
investment properties of HK$41.5 million (Year ended 31 December
2016: HK$22.0 million); decrease in fair value on investments held for
trading of HK$39.3 million (Year ended 31 December 2016: HK$5.8
million), partially offset by interest income of HK$8.6 million (Year
ended 31 December 2016: HK$14.1 million); other income of HK$0.6
million (Year ended 31 December 2016: HK$14.8 million); and income
tax credit of HK$2.6 million (Year ended 31 December 2016: income

tax expense of HK$0.7 million).

The performance of the Group’s hotels and securities trading during
the year under audit, the commentary on the hotel sector and the
changes in general market conditions and the potential impact on
their operating performance and future prospects are contained in the

succeeding sections headed “Business Review"” and “Prospects”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEma &k oA

BUSINESS REVIEW

(a)

(b)

Hotel Investment

The hotel investment comprises three “Rosedale” branded 4-star
rated hotels located in Hong Kong, Guangzhou and Shenyang
and the Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel. Overall turnover generated
from hotel investment increased by 4.1% to HK$252.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Year ended 31 December
2016: HK$242.3 million). With the setback encountered by
the tourism industry in the year under review, the combined
average occupancy rate of the Group was slightly increased
by 1.4% to 75.5% for the year ended 31 December 2017
(Year ended 31 December 2016: 74.1%). If the operational
figures of our hotels are only compared with those of other
comparable hotels in similar categories, their performance
will be in line with market averages. The gross margin was
maintained at 39.9% or decreased by 0.4% when compared
with the corresponding period in 2016 of 40.3%. To combat
the competitive environment, the Group will continue to invest
resources to enhancing its market network and positioning and,
in the meantime, will further streamline its business operations to

contain costs efficiently.

Securities Trading

The segment recorded a loss of HK$37.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (Year ended 31 December 2016:
segment loss of HK$5.8 million), representing fair value loss
of investments held for trading, as a result of mark to market

valuations as at the balance sheet date.

The Group has no immediate plans for material investments
or capital assets, other than those as disclosed in this section
and the succeeding sections headed “Material Acquisitions and

Disposals” and “Prospects”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 31 December 2014, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with two independent third
parties (the “Vendors”) in relation to the possible acquisition of 51%
equity interests in a company owned by the Vendors (the “Possible
Acquisition”). Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, among other
things, (i) an exclusivity period of three months after the date of the
Framework Agreement was granted to the Company; and (ii) the
Company and the Vendors shall enter into a loan agreement for a
short term interest free loan of HK$75 million (the “Loan Agreement”)
to facilitate the Vendors to the acquisition of the entire equity
interest in a PRC registered company (the “PRC Company”) from all
its existing shareholders. The PRC Company owns a parcel of land in
Zhuhai, the PRC with a site area of 19,152.69 square metres. The PRC
Company also owns a hotel property on the aforesaid land known as
Zhuhai Lizhou Holiday Hotel. On 31 March 2015, 30 June 2015, 30
September 2015, 30 December 2015, 30 April 2016, 29 December
2016 and 22 June 2017, supplemental framework agreements and
extension letters were signed to further extend the exclusivity period
and the repayment date of the Loan Agreement to 30 June 2015, 30
September 2015, 31 December 2015, 29 April 2016, 31 December
2016, 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2017, respectively. No formal
agreement was entered into between the Company and the Vendors
by 31 December 2017, the Framework Agreement (as supplemented
by the aforesaid supplemental framework agreements) lapsed on 1
January 2018. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement (as supplemented by
the aforesaid extension letters), the interest free loan of HK$75 million
was repayable on 31 December 2017. On 29 December 2017, the
Vendors had repaid it in full to the Company. Further details of the
Possible Acquisition were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 31 December 2014, 31 March 2015, 30 June 2015, 30
September 2015, 30 December 2015, 30 April 2016, 29 December
2016, 22 June 2017 and 2 January 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
(CONTINUED)

On 2 July 2015, the Company and an independent third party (the
“JV Partner”) entered into a memorandum of understanding (the
“MOU"), relating to possible investment in a hotel located in Canada
(the “Possible Investment”). The Company paid a refundable earnest
money of approximately HK$172.9 million (the “Earnest Money”) to
the JV Partner. The expiry date of the MOU was 31 July 2015. On
31 July 2015, 31 August 2015, 25 September 2015, 30 November
2015 and 29 January 2016, the Company and the JV Partner further
entered into letters of extension in relation to the MOU to extend the
expiry date of the MOU to 31 August 2015, 30 September 2015, 30
November 2015, 29 January 2016 and 29 April 2016, respectively.
On 27 April 2016, the Company decided not to proceed with the
Possible Investment and executed a deed of termination with the
JV Partner. The Earnest Money was fully refunded to the Company
subsequently. Further details of the Possible Investment are disclosed
in the Company’s announcements dated 2 July 2015, 31 July 2015,
31 August 2015, 25 September 2015, 30 November 2015, 29 January
2016 and 27 April 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
(CONTINUED)

On 27 December 2017, the Company and independent third parties
(the "PRC Vendors”) entered into a share transfer agreement (the
“Agreement”), relating to a proposed acquisition (the “Acquisition”)
of the entire registered capital of a limited liability company
established in the PRC (the “Target”) at a consideration of RMB280
million (equivalent to approximately HK$334 million). The Company
paid a refundable earnest money of RMB20 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$24 million) to the PRC Vendors. The principal asset
of the Target is a resort property located at Guangdong Province,
which is an area with hot springs and forest in the proximity (the
“Resort Property”). The Resort Property occupies a site area of about
5,000 mu, of which 980 mu are for residential use, 2,200 mu are for
commercial use and 1,820 mu are for amenities. It shall be developed
into a modernised health and wellness complex with eco-agricultural
theme, comprising hotel, vacation apartments and villas, spa,
health management and Chinese medical centre, recreational and
sports facilities, and other wellness facilities. As at the date of this
annual report, a hotel with 177 guest rooms, 18 vacation villas, a
restaurant, 20 trailers and a golf academy and training facilities have
been constructed at the site area. Pursuant to the Agreement, the
completion of the Acquisition is conditional upon the fulfiiment of a

number of conditions by 30 April 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and bank balances and
investments held for trading amounted to HK$1,823.7 million (31
December 2016: HK$1,720.9 million). The Group has no borrowings
as at each of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

The Group's current assets and current liabilities as at 31 December
2017 were HK$1,889.1 million and HK$185.1 million (31 December
2016: HK$1,907.7 million and HK$181.9 million), respectively. As a
result, the current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2017 was
10.2 (31 December 2016: 10.5). The gearing ratio as at 31 December
2017, expressed as a percentage of total borrowings to equity
attributable to owners of the Company, was nil (31 December 2016:

nil).

As at each of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, over 95%
of the Group’s cash and bank balances and investments held for
trading were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States
dollar, approximately 3.7% were in Renminbi and the balance of

approximately 0.8% were in other currencies.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE
PLACEMENT

The net proceeds of approximately HK$114 million was raised from
the share placement in connection with the placing of 131,535,174
new shares at placing price of HK$0.89 per share of the Company that
completed on 8 June 2015, and as at the date of this annual report,
the net proceeds has been fully utilised for general working capital of
the Group which mainly included administrative expenses and staff
costs. The use is considered to be consistent with the intended use of
proceeds as disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 26

May 2015 and 27 May 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any assets pledged for credit facilities as at
each of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at each

of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not entered
into any hedging arrangements. However, the Group will actively
consider the use of relevant financial instruments to manage currency

exchange risks in line with our business development.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was not subject
to the risk of significant interest rate volatility. The Company will
continue to monitor the interest rate markets and actively consider the
application of relevant financial instruments to manage risks associated

with interest rates.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2017, the Group had 657 employees of which 536
employees were stationed in the PRC. Employees’ remuneration
packages were determined in accordance with individual's
responsibility, competence and skills, qualifications, experience and
performance as well as market pay-level. Staff benefits include training
programs, provident fund scheme, medical insurance and other

competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives and rewards to employees, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme for the eligible participants (including

employees).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the growth momentum in global economy is expected
to continue on course for further moderate expansion in 2018,
although the increasing degree of geopolitical tensions in various
regions and increasing political and policy uncertainties are stating
potential downside risks. Based on the information released by the
World Bank Group, the risks also include increased protectionism,
the possibility of financial market turbulence, and, over the longer
run, weaker potential growth. Despite the growth prospects have
continued to weaken throughout those numbers of downside risks,
and the global GDP growth is projected to edge up to 3.1% in 2018,
as the cyclical momentum continues, and then slightly moderate to
an average of 3.0% in 2019/2020. In China, its economy growth
is firmed and contributing to a fast improvement in confidence.
Consequently, Central government has implemented various tightening
monetary policies to cool down overheated markets. With the China’s
policy-guided gradual transition, we believe China will continue to
play a key role in the future global economic recovery. In the light of
this market condition, the Group is optimistic in its future business
expansion in China and is geared up to reap the benefits of such

expansion.

The core strength of the Group is built on its philosophy and strategy
that focusing on the development and maintenance of the portfolio
of hotels and other assets for the long term future. This provides
the vision and willingness to invest in assets for its long term value
creation and the staying power to ride through shorter term cycles
in the economy without compromising the quality of our products
and services. This year, we have experienced a mixed condition to
our businesses. In the midst of a market correction under the volatile
economic, political and social security circumstances given, it is a
constant challenge to drive revenues, control costs and maintain or

improve our operating margins.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Under tough conditions over the years with taking a wider and longer
term view, we believe our hotels remain well placed in the markets
that they operate and we expect to perform in line with expectations
in the coming year. Overall with the Group is underpinned by a strong
balance sheet comprising high quality and conservatively valued assets
coupled with a low level of gearing, as well as our dedicated team of
management and staff who understand and respect our heritage and
serve the Group with loyalty, we remain cautiously optimistic about
the prospects for tourism and other markets that we are seeking to
identify suitable investment opportunities, continuing to chart a course
which maximising the quality and value of our portfolio and creating

win-win scenarios for all stakeholders.
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Dr. Yap, Allan, aged 62, has been the Chairman of the Company
since December 2014. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Dr. Yap holds an honorary degree of Doctor of Laws
and has over 30 years’ experience in finance, investment and banking.
He was an executive director of the Company from 2002 to 2011.
Dr. Yap is a substantial shareholder, the chairman and an executive
director of Master Glory Group Limited (“Master Glory”, a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the shares of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK"). In addition, he is the
chairman, chief executive officer and a director of Burcon NutraScience
Corporation, the shares of which are listed on the NASDAQ Stock
Market in the United States of America, the Toronto Stock Exchange
in Canada and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany, as well as
China Enterprises Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and an associated company of Master Glory), the shares of which
are traded on the OTC Securities Marketplace in the United States
of America. He is also the executive chairman of Hanwell Holdings
Limited and Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd., the shares of both
companies are listed on Singapore Exchange Limited. Dr. Yap was
an alternate director of Television Broadcasts Limited, the chairman
and an executive director of Shaw Brothers Holdings Limited and
the honorary chairman and a non-executive director of SMI Holdings
Group Limited, the shares of all of which are listed on the SEHK,
until he resigned on 29 December 2015, 25 October 2016 and 28

November 2017 respectively.

Annual Report 2017
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Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, aged 52, has been the Managing Director of the
Company since June 2009. She is also the chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company, and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan joined the Company
in May 2002. She is a member of Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and also a practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She has over 29 years’ experience
in auditing, accounting and finance in both international accounting
firms and listed companies. Ms. Chan is currently the deputy
chairman of China Enterprises Limited (“CEL"), which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and an associated company of Master
Glory Group Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company). The
shares of CEL are traded on the OTC Securities Marketplace in the

United States of America.

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis, aged 67, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2002. He is a well-known actor,
master of ceremonies, and horseracing and soccer commentator.
Mr. Chan has over 37 years’ experience in the entertainment and film

industry in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 69, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since December 2002. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok was a marketing
manager in an international company engaging in the design of
business administration system. He has been in the insurance and
investment business for over 35 years, principally in the senior
managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an
independent non-executive director of Master Glory Group Limited
("Master Glory”), a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also
an independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited
("ITC Properties”). The shares of Master Glory and ITC Properties are

listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 56, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since March 2007. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee,
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Poon graduated from the
University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master of Science degree in
Business Administration. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the CPA Australia.
Mr. Poon is an independent non-executive director of Master Glory
Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive director of Shaw

Brothers Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the SEHK.

Annual Report 2017
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 58, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since January 2008. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Sin is a director and a
shareholder of a Singapore company engaged in the distribution of
data storage media and computer related products in Asian countries.
He obtained a diploma in Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a member of Singapore Institute of Directors. Mr. Sin
has over 21 years' sales and marketing experience in information
technology industries and in the banking field. He is an independent
non-executive director of Master Glory Group Limited (“Master
Glory”), the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also
an independent non-executive director of China Enterprises Limited
(a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and an associated company
of Master Glory), the shares of which are traded on the OTC Securities
Marketplace in the United States of America.

Directors Profile
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Mr. Lau Ka Kit, Ken, aged 46, has been the Financial Controller
of the Company since April 2015 and is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 20 years of progressive
accounting experience through management roles for a variety of
public and private multinational corporations. Mr. Lau is a member
of CPA Australia and a certificate holder of American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Law Sau Lai, aged 50, has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since August 2009. Ms. Law is an associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She has extensive experience in

company secretarial practice.

Annual Report 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited (“Company”) is committed to
achieving and maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
which is crucial to the development of the Company and can
safeguard the interests of its shareholders (“Shareholders”). The board
of directors of the Company (“Board” and “Directors” respectively)
has adopted various policies and procedures to ensure compliance with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the Board, the Company
complied with the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2017
("Year"”), except for Code Provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 with considered

reasons explained below.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM
BUSINESS MODEL

The Company is principally engaged in the sector of hotel investment
in Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
The Company’s corporate objective is to create and enhance value
for Shareholders. To achieve this corporate objective, the business
strategies of the Company are to maintain the long term growth
and the profitability of the Company by developing and investing
in quality hotels in decent locations in Hong Kong and in the PRC.
Notwithstanding that the Company shall strive to further comprehend
its four-star rated business hotel network, it shall explore further
opportunities in the hospitality sector. The Company is committed to
maintain a solid and healthy financial status with a solid cash balance
and an efficient debt/equity ratio that will enable the Company
to finance the existing operations and proceed with potential

investments.

SEEARE

BE

HBBEZRARAR (TRAR]) BAORE
BRERSKTZEREER ROEERY
ARARERRRERNAFBRE (TRRR]) #E=
EREZ-ARAEFTE (DRAIESEE]
RIEE)ERMEBERRRERF - UHER
BFEBBBMARSBRAR ([HRAT])F
HEmRA (T EmARR) M8+ mpTE >
EERTR (TEEERTAI) 257 A&
N -BEEGRA REBEZE-_T—+tH+=A
=S+—RAEFE(AFENDAR ARAIEE
STEEEARTACERTXHEZ EMAR
EmARMEEZFAEXEALMEREE.2
TERER SN o

TREBRRERBEN

ARAIBEFERPEARKNE ([
BOREBEEREXE - ARAZEERE
TRERAERREAEE - Bt XREZ
EBRBAEBERNIRENLEETE LT
BEdtHc@EOE MEFARRR
BRENER BEARABHINE-—F=E
HEREBIEEBE  EITSE—FER
RETEZEE - ARRAREBERRZA
ERBRITZABRNER TR E - B
REZMHMR  BUSRBEERTES -
WHEITEEIRE °

HEAEERERAR
20175 3R

17



18

Corporate Governance Report
J/J‘_\ﬁkk #ﬁ =

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six Directors including three executive
Directors (“Executive Directors”) and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”) whose biographical details are set out in the

“Directors Profile” on pages 12 to 15 of this annual report.

The Board is principally accountable to Shareholders and responsible
for the leadership and control of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Group”) including formulating strategies, establishing
strategic directions, overseeing the Group’s businesses and systems
of risk management and internal controls, monitoring operating and
financial performance, setting objectives and business development

plans, and monitoring the performance of senior management.

The Board has delegated operational decisions to the Executive
Directors led by the Managing Director. Daily operations and

administration are delegated to the management.

In addition, the Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Corporate Governance Committee to oversee particular aspects of the

Company'’s affairs.

The Board meets regularly each year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group, and review and approve the
Group's annual and interim results, and other matters which need to
be dealt with. Additional board meetings will be held as and when
required. Resolutions in writing may be passed by all Directors in lieu

of a meeting pursuant to Bye-Laws of the Company (“Bye-Laws").

During the Year, six (6) full Board meetings (including four (4) regular
Board meetings) were held. In addition, one (1) set of resolutions in

writing of all Directors was passed.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The attendance of each Board member at the full meetings of the
Board and the general meetings of the Company held during the Year

is set out as follows:

TEERME

EEE @
BREFENERNAFEANRTNEZRESRS
EERARABREREZHBEBERLOT

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HERBITERRE

Annual Special

Board General General

Meeting Meeting Meeting

Name of Directors EEgE EXgE3 RRBEFAKE RREIKE

Executive Directors BITES

Dr. Yap, Allan (Chairman) EREBL(£E) 5/6 0/1 0/1

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director) PRIC I+ (EFAATE) 6/6 1/1 1/1

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BREFSTE 4/6 0/1 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITES

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva SEILTE 6/6 1/1 1/1

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EEE A 6/6 11 171

Mr. Sin Chi Fai HEEBAeE 6/6 0/1 0/1

The Chairman also held a meeting with the INEDs without the
presence of the Executive Directors during the Year according to Code

Provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD
MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations) between

each other.

RAFEA TRTFEREELEEARTUZ
STRMRXEA2 TR B FFRITERRITT
—RBTEFREZEE

EEENE[ZBE

EEeXBZHAMBEEMNEER (BREBE -
% KBRHMER MEEBER) -

HEAEERERAR
20175 3R

19



20

Corporate Governance Report
TXRERME

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has purchased appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers

of the Group arising from the performance of his/her duties.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the Board diversity policy (“Policy”) to guide
the Board in developing and achieving its diversity in terms of skills,
professional experience, knowledge, expertise, education, age, gender
and length of service in order to enhance the effectiveness of the

Board.

In selecting new Directors, the Nomination Committee will identify
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board with
adequate consideration to the Policy and make recommendations to

the Board.

In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of

diversity on the Board.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria with due regard for the benefits

of diversity on the Board.

The Board has not set any measurable objectives for implementing the
Policy having taken into account the existing composition of the Board

and the business model of the Group.

The Board will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its

continued effectiveness.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of the Chairman
and the Managing Director, who performs the function of chief
executive officer, are currently held by Dr. Yap, Allan and Ms. Chan
Ling, Eva separately. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership
of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible for the
operation of the business and performance of the Group. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing Director

of the Company is clearly established and set out in writing.

Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of
the Company, Dr. Yap, Allan, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2017 (“2017 AGM") as he
had other business engagement. Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, the Managing
Director of the Company, attended and took the chair of the 2017
AGM in accordance with Bye-Law 68 of the Bye-Laws and answered

questions from the Shareholders, if any.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the Year, Directors were provided with materials on the
corporate governance and updates on the developments of the Listing
Rules for their reading. Directors were also provided with monthly

updates on the Group’s business and financial matters.

From time to time, the Company Secretary circulates details of
training courses which may be of interests to Directors. All Directors
are encouraged to attend the relevant training courses and seminars

organised by professional bodies at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records received by the Company, the Directors
(namely, Dr. Yap, Allan, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, Mr. Chan Pak Cheung,
Natalis, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and
Mr. Sin Chi Fai) participated in continuous professional development
during the Year by reading materials provided by the Company.
Besides, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva had attended seminars organised by

various professional bodies.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The current INEDs were not appointed for a specific
term. However, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-Law
99 of the Bye-Laws. Every Director is also subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years according to Code Provision
A.4.2 of the CG Code. The Board considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those prescribed by Code Provision
A.4.1, and therefore does not intend to take any steps in this regard

at the moment.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. On 27 March 2018, the Nomination Committee held a
meeting to assess the independence of INEDs. Taking into account
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Nomination Committee considered that all INEDs remained

independent.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (“Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. The Company has made
specific enquiries with all Directors and they have confirmed their
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code

during the Year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (”Audit

Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three INEDs, namely,
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Sin Chi Fai.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are (i) to review the
financial information of the Company and to oversee the relationship
with the external auditor; (ii) to assist the Board to review the Group's
financial reporting system, and risk management and internal control
systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function); and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment

and removal of the external auditor.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three (3) meetings and

had performed the following work:

(1) to review the financial reporting matters including the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and make

recommendations to the Board;

(2) to approve the engagement letters of external auditor for the
audit of the 2016 annual results and the review of 2017 interim

results;

(3) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group; and

(4) to make recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of

external auditor at the 2017 AGM.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Audit

Committee held during the Year is as follows:

TEERME

ZEEREBRAFEANBRITNERLZ

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Name of Audit Committee Members BEREEERERS HE/BITEERE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EEE LA 3/3
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva P EE 3/3
Mr. Sin Chi Fai hER A 3/3

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in line

with the Code.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two INEDs, namely,
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, and one Executive Director, namely,

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are (i)
to consider and to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management of the Company; (ii) to review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Executive Directors
and the senior management of the Company; and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one (1) meeting

and had performed the following work:

(1) to review the directors’ fees for the INEDs for 2018 and make

recommendations to the Board;

(2) to review the remuneration policy of the Company and the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior

management of the Company; and

(3) to review and approve the proposed level of salary increase of
employees, including the senior management of the Company,

for 2018.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee passed one (1) set of
resolutions in writing in 2017 regarding the payment of discretionary
bonuses to the Managing Director and the senior management of the

Company for 2016.

The attendance of individual members at the meeting of the

Remuneration Committee held during the Year is set out below:

FMEES @
NAEERN FHEEeR
% YEBTUTIE:

TT—Mk&

(1) BEBIFATEZ_ZT-N\FZESF
BERAEESRHEE

(2) BARRRZEFEMBEERTEERS
REBABZHEME

() EHRHWERES SEARFARRER
AB RZFB-N\E2HFMAEZESR
N

goh - HIME B &5 sii—ti%ééﬁ?—(ﬂ
MEERE  BRMAE
ABRE T —NFER

BEMWEES
HEBERAT :

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Name of Remuneration Committee Members FHNEEERENR HE/ BITEBERHE
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PRI E 1/1
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert & BB 11
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva RIS 22t 1/1

Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective duties and

responsibilities with the Company and prevailing market conditions.

During the Year, no Directors were involved in deciding his or her own

remuneration.

Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year are disclosed in

note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The remuneration of the members of the senior management for the

Year is within the following bands:

J/Jé*ﬁ-h—

HE

e
B
YA
il

By

= (%)

SREBANERAFEZHWNEATHENR :

Number of Senior

Management

SREEABHE

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000/ 7T 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination

Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the Code.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two INEDs, namely,
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (Chairman of the Nomination Committee
since 1 January 2018), Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, and one Executive

Director, namely, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (appointed on 1 January 2018).

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are (i)
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy of the Company; (i) to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board; (iii)
to assess the independence of INEDs; (iv) to review the time required
from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;
and (v) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or

re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two (2) meetings

and had performed the following work:

(1) to assess the independence of INEDs;

(2) to consider and make recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of retiring Directors at the 2017 AGM,;

(3) to review the structure, size and composition of the Board; and

(4) to review the time required from a Director to perform his/her

responsibilities to the Company.
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The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the RIREZZEEMERNAFERNEBITNEEZ
Nomination Committee held during the Year is as follows: HEERINT
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held
Name of Nomination Committee Members REZEGRENSE HEBITEERE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert BB A 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BRI EE 2/2
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BRI¥C &+
(appointed on 1 January 2018) (RZE-—NF-—A—BEZME) 0/0
Dr. Yap, Allan B BEL
(ceased on 1 January 2018) (RZZE—N\F—F—HABEMD 2/2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a corporate governance committee
("Corporate Governance Committee”) with written terms of reference

in line with the CG Code.

28 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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The Corporate Governance Committee currently comprises two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and
one Executive Director, namely, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Chairman of the

Corporate Governance Committee).

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee
are (i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (iii) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and (iv) to review the Company’s
compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.

During the Year, the Corporate Governance Committee held two (2)

meetings and had performed the following work:

(1) to review the Company’s practices on corporate governance and
the Company’s practices in compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(2) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and for the six months ended 30
June 2017 and disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report

and the interim report; and

(3) to review the training and continuous professional development

of Directors and senior management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
(CONTINUED)

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the

Corporate Governance Committee held during the Year is as follows:

Name of Corporate Governance
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Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Committee Members TEERZEERNERB HERBITEBRRE
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BRI 22+ 2/2
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B B A 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva ML LE 2/2
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT MBENEZ

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the financial
performance and cash flows for such financial period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
and made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial

statements for the Year on a going concern basis.

Auditor’s Responsibilities and Remuneration

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) were re-appointed
by the Shareholders at the 2017 AGM as the Company’s external
auditor until the next annual general meeting. During the Year,
the fee payable to Deloitte for audit services was approximately
HK$3,816,000. Fees paid for interim review and other non-audit

services were approximately HK$1,617,000.

The statement of Deloitte regarding their reporting responsibilities are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 54 to 63 of this

annual report.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to ensure the
Group, setting appropriate policies and maintaining its effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of
the Company, the main features including the reliability of financial
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budgets as well.
The process includes identification, evaluation, management measures
and control and review. Meetings are held regularly to review the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems, to
identify any significant management and operational risks as well as

control failings or weaknesses.

During the Year, the Company has outsourced its internal control
audit function to an independent accounting firm covering the review
of key internal controls in selected areas based on key operational,
financial and compliance risks as identified under the risk management
framework and as advised by the Audit Committee and the
management. The independent accounting firm is staffed with persons
with relevant qualifications and experience. They reported directly and
primarily to the Audit Committee and assist the Board in monitoring
and managing the risks and internal controls of the Group. They
also planned their internal audit schedules in consultation with, but
independently of the management. The Audit Committee reviewed
the activities of the independent accounting firm on a regular basis,
including the overseeing and monitoring of the implementation
improvements on the weaknesses of the system of internal controls

within the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management and Internal Controls (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the internal control audit plan, the independent
accounting firm has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s system of internal controls. Weaknesses in
internal controls and recommendations for areas of improvements
have been reported to the Audit Committee. Following the receipt
of such recommendations, the Company has fully implemented
the recommendations to further strengthen the risk management
framework and internal control system during 2017. The Audit
Committee was satisfied that there were no significant control failings,
weaknesses or significant areas of concern identified during the
Year which might affect shareholders. It concluded that an adequate
and effective internal control system is maintained to safeguard the

shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness and
adequacy of the internal control audit function and the Audit
Committee considers that the internal control audit function is

adequately resourced.

Framework for Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on Disclosure of Inside Information
which set out the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to
Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information

Provision under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company. During the
Year, the Company Secretary complied with the relevant professional

training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges the importance of communicating with
Shareholders. The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy setting out formal channels of communication with

Shareholders.

The Company maintains continuing communication with Shareholders
through a number of channels including financial reports (interim and
annual reports), announcements, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened as well as other documents

submitted to the Stock Exchange.

Information relating to the Group is available on the Company’'s

website at www.rhh.com.hk.

The Company uses general meetings as a tool to effectively
communicate with Shareholders and provide Shareholders with the

opportunity of asking questions on any relevant matters.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings of the
Company or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and

on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

Directors, appropriate management executives and the external
auditor are available at the annual general meetings of the Company

to answer Shareholders’ questions.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong. To the extent the requisite information of the Company is
publicly available, Shareholders may at any time send enquiry(ies) to
the Board in writing at the head office and principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 3401, 34th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, or by email to
info@rhh.com.hk.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
registered Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, may request the Board

to convene a special general meeting.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more

requisitionists.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting (CONTINUED)

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the
Board to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
to all Shareholders in accordance with the requirements set out in the

Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws.

In the event that the requisition has been verified as not in order,
the requisitionist(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a special general meeting will not be convened as

requested.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of a valid requisition, proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half (50%) of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the said date of deposit of
the requisition. A general meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s)
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible as that in

which meetings are to be convened by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
either (i) any number of registered Shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the general
meeting of the Company to which the requisition relates; or (i) not
less than one hundred (100) of such Shareholders, can submit a

requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution (other than a proposal
for election as a Director) which may properly be moved and is

intended to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that

meeting.

The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionist(s) (may
consist of one or several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more requisitionists) and deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and
not less than six (6) weeks before the annual general meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of resolution or not less than one
(1) week before the general meeting in case of any other requisition.
Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six
(6) weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to

have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings (CONTINUED)

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general

meeting or circulating the statement for the general meeting.

In the event that the requisition is not in order or the requisitionist(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purpose, the requisitionist(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the annual
general meeting or the statement will not be circulated for the general

meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the

Company’s website at www.rhh.com.hk.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No amendments were made to the Company’'s Memorandum of

Association and Bye-Laws during the Year.
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Report of the Directors
EEGHE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31 December

2017 ("Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of hotel operation and
trading of securities. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 36 to the consolidation

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages

64 and 65 of this annual report.

The board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) has resolved not to

recommend a final dividend for the Year (2016: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business, a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group’s business that have occurred since the end of
the financial year 2017 and a discussion on future development in
the Group’s business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 2 to 11 respectively of this annual report. Also,
details of financial risks are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. The aforesaid discussions form part of the Report

of Directors.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages from time to
time. The Group achieves this through rational resources utilisation
and compliance with applicable environmental laws and practices of
environmental protection, health and safety, workplace conditions
and employment. The Group continues to improve the environmental
performance as an integral and fundamental part of the business

strategy and operating methods.

A separate environmental, social and governance report is expected to
be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

no later than three months after the publication of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Sufficient resources and training have been allocated
and provided to ensure the on-going compliance with those applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2017 and
up to the date of this report, the Board was unaware of any incidence
of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group’s business where the Group is

operating.

RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including customers,
suppliers and employees. During the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report, there were no material and
significant disputes between the Group and its key stakeholders. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain

good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five years is set out on

page 177 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In addition to the accumulated profits, under The Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company which
were available for distribution to shareholders of the Company

("Shareholders”) at 31 December 2017 were nil (2016: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2017 are

set out on pages 178 to 180 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Yap, Allan (Chairman)
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Mr. Sin Chi Fai

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company
("Bye-Laws”) and Code Provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code ("CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of the Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”),
Dr. Yap, Allan and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva shall retire from office by
rotation at the 2018 annual general meeting of the Company (“2018

AGM") and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 2018
AGM has a service contract with the Group which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws and subject to the provisions of the statutes,
the Directors shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duty of their respective offices or in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and
officers liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group

during the Year.
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EEGHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interests, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of 2017

or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or existed during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Scheme”) on 30 May
2013 and is valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last condition to the Scheme
was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject to early termination by the

Company in general meeting or by the Board.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject
to any other schemes of the Company, is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of adoption
of the Scheme (”“Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the Company obtains
an approval from Shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Scheme Mandate Limit
so refreshed must not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of approval of refreshment by Shareholders.
Nevertheless, the maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
not yet exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of

the Company from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2017,
Shareholders approved the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate
Limit. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
options available for granting by the Company under the Scheme was
78,921,104, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on that date.

The number of shares of the Company in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and other share option scheme(s)
of the Company to any Participant in aggregate in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant of
further options above this limit shall be subject to the requirements

under the Listing Rules.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder of the
Company or any Independent Non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result
in the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to such person in 12-month

period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the

Company in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company on the date of each grant in excess of

HK$5 million,

such grant of options shall be subject to approval of Shareholders in

general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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EEGHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The subscription price of the options under the Scheme will be a price
determined by the Board, in its absolute discretion, but in any case

will not be lower than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of

grant, which must be a trading day;

(ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five

trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of

grant.

Further details of the Scheme are set out in note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company had 65,600,000
options outstanding under the Scheme, representing approximately

8.3% of the shares of the Company in issue on that date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Report of the Directors
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BRETE

Details of the movements of the share options granted under the  1REFZIBEMBEREZ EHFBENOT
Scheme were as follows:
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding
as at Granted  Exercised lapsed as at Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December Date of price Exercise
Eligible participant 2017 the Year the Year the Year 2017 grant  per share period
(Note 1) HK$
i
R ZB-tf
—E-t% 1 I R TR
‘ —A-B  A§EM KEER AEER =1 5B )
RERSRE R i T HE/XX R AT R AM TEE e
(Hrit1) oy
Directors
Bz
Dr. Yap, Allan - 7,800,000 = - 7,800,000 24.04.2017 0.590  24.04.2017-23.04.2022
ERBET
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva - 7,800,000 - - 7,800,000 24.04.2017 0.590  24.04.2017-23.04.2022
(33 o
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 24.04.2017 0.590  24.04.2017-23.04.2022
RAEHLE
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva - 500,000 - - 500,000  24.04.2017 0.590  24.04.2017-23.04.2022
ARUEE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert = 500,000 = = 500,000  24.04.2017 0.590  24.04.2017-23.04.2022
REARLE
Mr. Sin Chi Fai - 500,000 - - 500,000  24.04.2017 0590  24.04.2017-23.04.2022
FEELE
Employee = 500,000 = = 500,000  24.04.2017 0.590  24.04.2017-23.04.2022
BT
Other gligﬁible participants - 46,000,000 - - 46,000,000 24.04.2017 0.590  24.04.2017-23.04.2022
EfEERIHE
Total - 65,600,000 - - 65,600,000
@t
Notes: it

(1) The closing market price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the date of grant as quoted in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets was HK$0.44 per share.

(2) The fair value of the share options granted during the Year calculated
at the date of grant using the Binomial model is set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time during
the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors of the Company (“Directors”) in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

BEROIUEZF 2L H

BEXBRESSIAEEEIN RAF
B ARA S EATAIM B QR B ERT A
ZH BEESFARBRBARBIEME M
EANER B HEFMES -

ESzk - HEARKRGD RES

R AKE

RZFE—+F+ZA=+—8 £ARQRRIES
(BFDRARAISEHAEREE (FERE
5 RERE IR ([ 5 RAERAI]) EXVER)
2Bt HERD REFFEE 2w kK
B MZSHa MRRQTHENBEES R
HERPIE3I2RETHEE 2 ELMA - (b)
RIE E TR+ 2 ETBEITAER#T
EFHRZFHRESR(MRESFAD ARG R
DA RBERFTAT



DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying

shares of the Company

Report of the Directors
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EE2RO - HERNKRES
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Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of share capital

Capacity/Nature Number of underlying of the

Name of Director of interest shares held shares held Total Company

(Note 1) (Note 2)

RN

i FrisiEeE ERITRAE

ES4B 5 EHEME RBEE RBEE M ZBABA L

(Htat1) (Bi7t2)

Dr. Yap, Allan Beneficial owner - 7,800,000 7,800,000 0.99%
ERBEL EREAA

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva Beneficial owner - 7,800,000 7,800,000 0.99%
FRIZ 0+ E&mBAA

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.25%
BRERFLE EmEAA

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Beneﬁcial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
BEIEE EREAA

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
% B o A EREAA

Mr. Sin Chi Fai Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
EEERE EnBEEA

Notes: Bt -

1. All Directors’ interests in the underlying shares of the Company were
in respect of the share options granted by the Company during the
Year, details of which are set out under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” above.

2. Based on a total of 789,211,046 issued shares of the Company as at
31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (a) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or
(b) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.

1. BERAR TWE‘@HxTﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁZ%\WZ%
ARBRFARD ZBRE  BRABH
M EXBES ] —4 -

2. BEBEARAR-Z—tF+-A=+—8
ZE BT B8 R789,211,046% ©
B L XX EE N T-tH&+=A

= CHEEENAAB K EAREE
EERBFLBMEGRPIBEXVE) 2B - 48
B EHFTHEETMERIORR - M
¥¢/§é”12ué)§(a)uﬂﬁ‘5"$ﬁf 7 R AR R B
$£3521& A %1%T2§Eaﬂﬂﬁﬂiﬁ(b>ﬁ?ﬁ§ﬁ—é
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d
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No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that requires the Company to enter into an
agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing shares, were
entered into by the Group during the Year or existed at the end of
2017.

As at 31 December 2017, interests of the Directors, other than

independent non-executive Directors, in competing businesses required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as

follows:

Description of
Name of entity which
business are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the

Name of Director  businesses of the Group

compete with the
businesses of the Group

RAFEIR Tt FFERK  NEEH
B VEARBERABRARRFETRODN
PR 81 - B BSRA R R AT AR 17 5%
& 2 A BB R B TR0 # B R AN 1

2
2

RZFE—+F+_A=+—H BELTR
AIEBI0RATHEESE (BUFNTES
BRI BB B EEB 2 ESMT

businesses of the entity
which are considered to
compete or likely to

Nature of interest of the
Director in the entity

HEBWRARLEEZ HEBWRARLEEZ
EXBARFHERTESE EKBERFHERTRESR
EEEB BREMCERERE HEMCEREM EERZERIESMNE
Dr. Yap, Allan Master Glory Group Limited Trading of securities Chairman and an executive director,
and its subsidiaries and a substantial shareholder
EREEL SELBEFRAA EHFEEHE FRE OBITEEREERR
R EKE R F

As the Board is independent from the boards of the above mentioned
entities, the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently

of, and at arm’s length from the business of those entities.

Annual Report 2017
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER

PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of persons,
other than Directors, in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

336 of the SFO were as follows:

Report of the Directors

ESERE

B SIARIT ¢

FERREREMALTARSG R
MR G R RIXR

R-ZE—+EFE+_A=+—0 BEBELEE
BB KRB E3B36mETECME &
EUIATRARB KRG REER DT ES

Approximate
percentage

Capacity/ of the issued
Long position/ Nature of Number of share capital
Name of Shareholder Short position interest shares held of the Company
HERAT BRI
RRER BE/ KR FRIEEME FERGEE BREAZHBNEIL
(a)  Master Glory Group Limited Long position Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
("MGG") (Note 1) corporation
NEEEERAR ([AEEE]) W) e REHRR 2 #H 148,506,000 18.82%
Master Glory Group (B.V.1.) Limited Long position  Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
("MGG BVI") (Note 1) corporation
Master Glory Group (B.V.l.) Limited HE REH AR 2 ER 148,506,000 18.82%
(MGG BVI]) (Ht3#1)
Master Glory Investment Group Limited Long position Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
("MGIG") (Note 1) corporation
HNEREEEERAA Ha REHARA S 148,506,000 18.82%
([ ERESE]) H5E1)
Leaptop Investments Limited Long position  Interest of controlled 148,506,000 18.82%
("Leaptop”) (Note 1) corporation
Leaptop Investments Limited e XEH ATz ER 148,506,000 18.82%
([Leaptop]) (#7:%1)
Asia Will Limited (“AWL") (Note 1) Long position Beneficial owner 148,506,000 18.82%
BERRRA(BE]) #Z1) e EREFA 148,506,000 18.82%
(b)  China Enterprises Limited (“CEL") (Note 2) Long position  Interest of controlled 48,660,424 6.17%
corporation
China Enterprises Limited ([ CEL]) (#77£2) HE REH AR 2 ER 48,660,424 6.17%
Cosmos Regent Ltd. (Note 2) Long position  Beneficial owner 43,325,554 5.49%
Cosmos Regent Ltd. (#77£2) HE EnEEA 43,325,554 5.49%

HEEEERERAF
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1) AWL, which held 148,506,000 shares of the Company, was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leaptop which was in turn a
wholly-owned subsidiary of MGIG. MGIG was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MGG BVI which was in turn wholly-owned by MGG.
Accordingly, Leaptop, MGIG, MGG BVI and MGG were deemed to be
interested in 148,506,000 shares of the Company held by AWL.

(2) CEL was deemed to be interested in 48,660,424 shares of the
Company through its interest in its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
Cosmos Regent Ltd. and Million Good Limited, which held
43,325,554 shares of the Company and 5,334,870 shares of the
Company respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company had
not been notified of any other persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the

SFO.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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A - AU Leaptop ~ BLEREEEH -
MGG BVIR S EEBWRIEHE S LT
148,506,000 N A A JR 10 2 = o

(2) CELZEBENZEMIE R RlCosmos Regent
Ltd. EMillion Good Limited (% Bl A&
43,325,554 KA QA I 5 &5,334,870
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the 2017

interim report are as follows:

Yap, Allan

Dr. Yap ceased to be a member and the chairman of the nomination

committee of the Company with effect from 1 January 2018.

Chan Ling, Eva

Ms. Chan has been appointed as a member of the nomination
committee of the Company with effect from 1 January 2018. The
monthly salary of Ms. Chan was revised from HK$180,000 to
HK$188,000 with effect from 1 February 2018. A discretionary bonus
for the Year in the amount of HK$600,000 was paid to Ms. Chan in
February 2018.

Poon Kwok Hing, Albert

Mr. Poon has been appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company with effect from 1 January 2018, and he
is entitled to receive an additional fee of HK$20,000 per annum for
being the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company

with effect from 1 January 2018.

Other updated information regarding the Directors required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set out in

the Directors Profile on pages 12 to 15 of this annual report.

Report of the Directors
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180,000/ JT A ¥ /&5188,0008 L B &
—NF_A-BRER - ARFR_F—N
F_AMRZEXNAFENRBELS
600,000/ 7T °
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group’s provident fund schemes are set out in note

29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or
the applicable laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of

the total value of the Group’s purchases and turnover respectively.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of

this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 to 37 of this annual

report.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the 2018 AGM. Having approved by
the Board upon the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution
for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2018 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

YAP, ALLAN
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018

Report of the Directors
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ROSEDALE HOTEL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEBEZERARLD

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rosedale
Hotel Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 176,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Annual Report 2017
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We draw attention to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
which describes the uncertainty related to the extension of business
licence period of Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou Co., Ltd. (“Rosedale
Guangzhou”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, to 15 January 2027. Should the Group be unable to
successfully extend the business licence period, the hotel operations of
Rosedale Guangzhou may be affected and further impairment of the
hotel property may be required. Our opinion is not modified in respect

of this matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

FAREGTEE

Impairment assessment of hotel properties

B Z B EFF

We identified the impairment assessment of the Group’s
hotel properties, which are included in property,
plant and equipment (note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements) as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance of hotel properties to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with the judgement involved in estimating their
recoverable amounts. The Group’s hotel properties are
located in the PRC and the Group incurred segment loss
of HK$22,552,000 arising from hotel operations during
the year ended 31 December 2017. The management
has recognised an impairment loss of HK$14,772,000
allocating to hotel property of HK$6,322,000 and
leasehold improvement of HK$8,450,000. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying values of the hotel
properties amounted to HK$372,662,000.
BB EEEBEEME GEADE HISERE R
BB HmEMTE5)) 2 BENHZR ARRETEIE
RERBEEY R RGN BRRBEBCEEN
mEBEHBEEDE AT KRB ER SR HE - E%
BBEMECRTPE MREZE-ZT—+tF+=A4
=ST-—BIEFE ESEEBEEBELESHER
22,552,000 7T - B2 [E B AWM EEE14,772,00078
Ty Be & B 5 ¥ %6,322,0008 T R EMEEE
8,450,000 T - N -_E—tF+_-_A=+—RH B
Y% 2 BRE {8 /372,662,000 T °
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWETMAEERE TS RETRE

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
the recoverable amounts of hotel properties included:

BN EEBHBEEY R RESRFEZRFEE

° Understanding the management’s process for
estimating the cash flow projections and financial
budgets;

BREBEEMFRENERA RN BEREZIRF

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer as well as the appropriateness of the

Valuers’ scope of work;

AHEAER 27 %8 - 88 MM A R ER TEHRE

ETAﬂ



Key audit matter

HARETEE

Impairment assessment of hotel properties (CONTINUED)
VB JEW 2 R E A (E)

The management reviewed the recoverable amount
of each hotel property at the end of the reporting
period by estimating the value-in-use of these hotel
properties with assistance of an independent qualified
valuer (the “Valuer”) not connected with the Group
to determine the impairment amount required to
write down these hotel properties to their recoverable
amounts. The value-in-use of the hotel properties are
dependent on certain key inputs including the estimated
gross profit margin, future revenue growth rates and
discount rates of the hotel properties.
EREEESEBEYEN 2 ML RE 2 KBS -
FERERE BEXREVEMBEZEYSERGEM([E
B D) BT - et FEEMEZEREE UEE
UL EEEYEMRZE AT MR AT 2 RESRE N
IEMEZEREEIUANE THREASE - 2E MG
EME  RRWARE RO EMEZBERE -

B A2 EM RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWESTMAEEARE TS RETRE

Evaluating the valuation model, including the
assumptions applied therein, prepared by the Valuer
in determining (i) the value-in-use based on the
management’s estimates of estimated gross profit
margin, future revenue growth rates expected to
arise from the hotel operations, with reference to the
historical performance and the financial budgets of the
Group approved by the management and (ii) discount
rates used by the management by comparing the data
derived externally to the Group’s own inputs of the
current market risk-free rate of interest as well as the
industry specific risk factor of the hotel operations; and
AHEAEMARETEATEEMREREZ HERE (B4
EREAZMKRRE)  (VEREE  NEXNEREH A
EFE - FEHBEEBHERZRRBRAERE 2 K
O ERELERARABEKEEEHRE: EEEZ
MBRE RNEEBEBEABZUEAE - FEREEIN
ROTHE 2 BB R B RE RS HE RTS8 E R %
ZEMABBUARBEEB2TERERARERETL
B R

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the management’s
assessment of the cash flow projections by comparing
the historical estimates to actual performance in
current year.
FHAEREREAHR e RBTERMET G2 ERLE - A
BRI BEMETEAREE R RBELR -
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Key audit matter

FAREGTEE

Valuation of investment properties

KREYRZIGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, combined with the judgements involved in
determining the fair value. The Group's investment
properties represent a completed complex for
commercial use, which is located in the PRC. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying value of the Group’s
investment properties amounted to HK$164,000,000.
A decrease in fair value of HK$41,529,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year then
ended.

B REMEZHESRNRERETFE  REAR
EMEIHGEEEVBRREBCE2E LA
AREWMELLNFEEF S RE - EXEZRE
MERK—BURPEEBTEREZEAE - RN _F
—tFTZA=1+—H  BESEREVECZEEER
164,000,0008 7T - REIZZ B IEZ FEMNGEERE R
HthzmEhamkPE AN T EERL41,529,0008 T °

All of the Group’s investment properties are stated
at fair value based on the valuation performed by
the Valuer. The fair value is derived by using direct
comparison approach.
EEEAHKRAEMEORBHAEMET 2 HEMKRA
FEEER ATFEERBEELBESFL -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWETMAEERE TS RETRE

Our procedures in relation to the management’s assessment
on the valuation of investment properties included:

BN EEBHREMEGELHEZRFERE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer as well as the appropriateness of the

Valuer's scope of work;

AHEEEM 2T B - e REEIEIA R ER TEE

B o< AR .
EAREHE

° Reviewing the valuation report from the Valuer and
holding discussion with the management and the
Valuer to understand the valuation basis, methodology
used and underlying assumptions applied;
ERMEM2EERSE W A EAEEE KRG ERMETR
i DAIRRRALEEEE - FTRANA RPTER 2 B



Key audit matter

HARETEE

Valuation of investment properties (CONTINUED)
REYE 1516 (&)

Details of the valuation techniques and significant
inputs used in the valuation are disclosed in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements. The valuation of
investment properties are dependent on certain inputs,
including the price per square metre of the comparable
transactions, adjusting factors on locations and residual
operating period.
HERMEGEEMRBZ FZ2RWABB ZFERNGS M
BHRERMITI6HE -REVEZBEIORRE TH A
BiE BREALCRRGZEFTHARER  UAREGEK
BRI ERZABRRY -

B A2 EM RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWESTMAEEARE TS RETRE

Evaluating the reasonableness of the underlying data
including comparable market transactions being used
by the Valuer and the adjusting factors related to
locations and residual operating period; and
FHAAEEEE . A - BEMEMAERZ TR
HRGARERMERFMEERER AERE : &

Performing market research and analysis to assess
whether the changes in fair value of investment
properties resulted from the valuation was reasonable
and consistent with the market trends to our
knowledge.
ETTSHRELD T AL EEEEZREMELNTE
EEHEECERESEBRMAMTEHBE— -
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2017
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Annual Report 2017
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Stephen C.L. Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

27 March 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

Revenue
Direct operating costs

Gross profit

Interest income

Other income, gains and losses

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
an amount due from a joint venture

Decrease in fair value of investment
properties

Share of result of a joint venture

Loss before taxation
Income tax credit (expense)

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income (expense)

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on

translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Annual Report 2017

NOTES
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2017

HK$’ 000
—E—tF
TER

252,311
(151,633)

100,678

8,574
(38,660)
(1,143)
(126,173)
(1,066)
(13,715)

(14,772)

(41,529)

(127,806)
2,558

(125,248)

52,885

(72,363)

2016
HK$' 000
—E-RF

THET

242,296
(144,689)

97,607

14,088

8,990
(1,476)
(159,287)
(2,280)

(27,983)

(22,009)
(179)

(92,529)
(665)

(93,194)

(45,887)

(139,081)



Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense for
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE
— Basic

— Diluted
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

2017 2016

HK$' 000 HK$' 000
—B—tfF TN
Fi#T FHT
(116,128) (86,438)
(9,120) (6,756)
(125,248) (93,194)
(71,501) (125,490)
(862) (13,591)
(72,363) (139,081)
HK$ HK$

BT T
(0.15) (0.11)
(0.15) N/A
3 A
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At 31 December 2017 A =& —

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Interest in a joint venture
Amount due from a joint venture
Available-for-sale investments

Other assets

Current assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Investments held for trading
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Annual Report 2017
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B &x

15
16
17
17
18
19

20
21
22
23

24

2017

HK$’ 000
—E—tF
TER

401,111
164,000

19,800

584,911

2,556
62,899
22,343

1,801,383

1,889,181

108,189
76,874

185,063

1,704,118

2,289,029

2016

HK$" 000
—T—RF
:F/;éﬂ:

415,470
192,000

19,800

627,270

2,441
184,350
60,000
1,660,949

1,907,740

102,856
79,048

181,904

1,725,836

2,353,106



e MR BwR

At 31 December 2017 R=—Z—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
—e-+% 2 A%
Bt 5 FERT FET
Non-current liability FEMEBEE
Deferred taxation IR IE R IR 25 41,154 46,583
Net assets BEEFE 2,247,875 2,306,523
Capital and reserves B R R fH
Share capital &N 26 7,892 7,892
Share premium and reserves B 19 (B & 7 s 2,048,327 2,106,113
Equity attributable to owners of the RRRIER AEIE#ER
Company 2,056,219 2,114,005
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 191,656 192,518
Total equity R 2,247,875 2,306,523

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 176 were HRFEE64EEZE176E 2iFEBHREZERN

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 Z—ZE—N\F=A=Z+tHEEESHERRE
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: Tz - WHTIESRRESE

YAP, ALLAN CHAN LING, EVA BERE BRI

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR HiTEF HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e RREZEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAARAAEL
Retained
earnings Non-
Share Share Special  Translation Share options Other  (accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves losses) Sub-total interests Total
HE'OOD  HKSO0D  HKSOD  HKSO0  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'OO0 RSO0 HKS'OO0  HKSO0D
REER
ke RGEE KRR EREE  BREEE  HtEE  (ZHER) Mt FERER ait
T T Tin T T Th T T T T
(Note ii (Note i)
(Kii) (k)
At 1 January 2016 R=Z-~E-A-R 7892 1360752 658,303 99,343 - (70319) 190,621 2246592 201,051 2,447,643
Loss for the year FEEEE - - - - - - (86438 (86438 (6756  (93.194)
Other comprehensive expense AEREMRERR
for the year
Exchange difference arising on BRI R AN HRER
ranslation of foreign operations ~ EEZEREE - = - (39.052) - - - (3905 (683)  (45,887)
Total comprehensive expense FEE2ERTEE
for the year - - - (39,052 - - (86,438 (125490)  (13,591)  (139,081)
Acquisition of additional interests ~ RE-RMBAR z E)MER
in a subsidiary - - - - - - (7,097) (7,097) 5,058 (2,039
At 31 December 2016 R-EF-rE+ZR=1-A 7892 1,360,752 658,303 60,291 - (703190 97,086 2,114,005 192,518 2,306,523
Loss for the year FEERE - - - - - - (116128 (116128) (91200  (12548)
Other comprehensive income FEREMEENS
for the year
Fxchange difference arising on BB R B AR
translation of foreign operations EE/EAES - - - W - - - M6 8258 52,885
Total comprehensive income FEE2ENE (Fx) 8%
(expense) for the year - - - 44627 - - (116,128)  (71,501) (862  (72,363)
Recognition of equity-settled BRIRALE 2 RRR
share-based payments (note 27) e ff (Ff&E27) - - - - 13715 - - 1375 - 13715
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+-A=1-H 7892 1360752 658303 104918 13,715 (70319)  (19,042) 205,219 191656 2,247,875

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

Notes:

(i)

(if)

When the Group increases its interest in an entity that is already
an entity controlled by the Group, it is accounted for as equity
transaction. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Other reserves represent
the differences between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
that is recognised directly in equity.

The special reserve represents (i) the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition under the
group reorganisation in September 1997; and (ii) reduction of share
capital took place during the years ended 31 December 2006 and
2008.

BYEE -

(i)

(if)

EASEEMENAEBEEBSEEZ
BERZERN  BREEMNENUREZS A
fR o NEEESRIFERERZREES
EH R - ARKRE B R %M B A 74
w2 #E) o HibfEEEIFERERZH
BEoREEENEERAZENRERF

BERZER -

FRREEOE-NANEFNLALETE
EAR BB R ThTZEEﬁ%W
BMEBTARRKRNDZEER 2 Z5
RiRBE_ZZREFR_TZNEF+=
A=+— B FEETZRAER -
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AERETMER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z—=F

Cash flows generated by operating
activities
Loss for the year
Adjustments for:
Share of result of a joint venture
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses
Interest income
Gain on early redemption of loan notes
receivable
Interest expense
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment
Unrealised loss in fair value of
investments held for trading
Decrease in fair value of investment
properties
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of an amount due from a joint
venture
Income tax (credit) expense

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease (increase) in trade and

other receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase in investments held for trading
Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from (used in) operations
Taxation paid in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC")

Net cash from (used in) operating activities

Annual Report 2017
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2017

HKS$’ 000
—E-tF
TER

(125,248)

37,660

13,715

(8,574)

1,066

21

14,772

39,264

41,529

(2,558)

11,647

123,873
(115)

4,137

127,895

139,542

(5,980)

133,562

2016
HK$' 000
—E-RF

THET

(93,194)
179

29,982

(14,088)

(8,371)
2,280

(3,628)

5,765

22,009

27,983
665

(30,418)

(63,416)
50
(51,359)
13,754

(100,971)

(131,389)

(3,306)

(134,695)



For the year ended 31 December 2017 2 &= —

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Deposit refunded for a possible
acquisition of an investment

Early repayment of loan notes receivable

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of other borrowings
Advance from other borrowings
Acquisition of additional interest in

a subsidiary
Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Effect of exchange rate changes on the
balance of cash held in foreign currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year, represented by bank
balances and cash

REEH HERE
B WA B
HEME - Has

K15 508
BEWE MR
ARREE-—EREZEREES

RABERKERRE

RERDEEZRSFH

MEEBZHASRE
EEEMER
ESEMEE
WE—KMBARZ

BMIME
EAHE

BMEEBMAZRSFR

RBeMAEFEEREB 2B INFE

FUZRERREEFHEER

EXBHEINERSEBRITE

FR7ZBENRESEEER
BIRIT & IR e

n‘/-.r\/\Iﬁﬁl)le’%%

B LET-ASt—ALER

2017 2016

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

—E-t5F —F— /\E

8,574 9,037

46 9,680

(4,283) (14,243)

- 172,940

- 200,000

4,337 377,414

(6,934) (10,000)
6,934

- (2,039)

(1,066) (2,280)

(1,066) (14,319)

136,833 228,400

1,660,949 1,436,453

3,601 (3,904)

1,801,383 1,660,949
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its substantial shareholder is Master
Glory Group Limited. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the businesses of hotel operation and

trading of securities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) has applied
the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first

time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses

As part of the annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will

be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;

(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 35. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart from
the additional disclosure in note 35, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

2.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial instruments’

Revenue from contracts with customers
and the related amendments'’

Leases?

Insurance contracts*

Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration’

Uncertainty over income tax
treatments?

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” with
HKFRS 4 “Insurance contracts"’

Prepayment features with negative
compensation?

Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture?®

Long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures?

As part of the annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle’

Transfers of investment property’
Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 cycle?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
Interpretations mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

F& P 3 AT B A

CHER LR

HEZEA(EEYHREE

Bl 1) )

© 28 i 1B fa R 4 Rz H7 5] R AR

B BB M B &,

4 ¥ g

R == /\|J

REE W TSR F EAATERMERR
R #E] RAEIERI B AWM IMEER

BEMBRSENFIR
BRMBRELERE 155

EBI RS LS 165

BB REENSTR

BB (AR ERLRE
REE)RED

B (ERUERLRE
ZE8)—2823

BBHBRE LSS
2T

BBHHRE LS4
2T

BEMBRSENFIR
T

BRNBREEE 0%
RERGHER 285

2T
BAEER£285
2T
BR SRR F285
T

BRGHENFI0FR 2 BT
BRMBAELER 2B

ERIA
[REZPANZHA]
e HE

ik

iR A
HNEZHRER/
RHRE
FEHEE 2 MEE

ABRRFR S22 8
Rit '
HEBMBREERZ4
RIRBRANIEREA
EREERFR &
BIA]
WERRHELBNHE
22
REEREBENASA
BRACAHEER T
ANEE
REERRRAEDRLZ
REER
EE_E-N&ER-%
—~NFRHEANER
LERBFENE -
i
BREENE
“T-RFE-T—t%
BHAEN S REER
ZEEHE?

' R_ZT—NF—A—Bxz2%RK
2 EE R A -

2 RZE-NF-—A—H%ZzEAK
ZFEHRMERR -

3 REBEEZAHRZERABRZEE
HAR 3K -

4 RZFE-—_—F—A—Bz2%ERAB
2 EE R A -

BT XA EEMBRELANEE
BB EEAZAET AR REIN - K
NARIEBERAEAMA LM REE
AIREMBREENRBFEMBRSEE
Al Z BTN AT R R T & SR e i
BREXRERATE -



e R ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and

measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general

hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial

assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group

are:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").
All other financial assets are measured at their fair value at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application of

HKFRS 9.

Classification and measurement

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale investments carried
at cost less impairment as disclosed in note 18: these securities
are qualified for designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS
9 and the Group will measure these securities at fair value at
the end of subsequent reporting periods with fair value gains
or losses to be recognised as other comprehensive income and

accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve if any.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to
be measured on the same bases as are currently measured under

HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (CONTINUED)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment

provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if
the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group,
there will not be any material impact to the results and financial
position to the Group based on the facts and circumstances as at

31 December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=-Z—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

BEMGREERBE ISR ELE M - &
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from HIE—EE - 2EEXNAHEEBHARE

KEEFPANZWAANR - BEWBER

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive

contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current

revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, SREBIFISHARERBBERRERES

HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related interpretations SEHEAFISHIKWAL - EEZFTEL

when it becomes effective. FIRRESCHNIREEREZRE

WATRERIES| -

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise B EREERFE1SHKZZLRE A

revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to ERNEREM T PEEAHE M

customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which R WMAR - ©EEERMZERR

the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or MR RZEER A RBAEREES 2R

services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach B AEBiME - ZEAS ARAER

to revenue recognition: B 25

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer o F—F :BREEBFIIZEN

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract e EF BRERNRZEBHEE

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price s E=H EBEXRSE

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance e BENH: BRIEHIBEAHNFZ
obligations in the contract BHEE

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies e FRN : REBTHBHEMER (3
a performance obligation BLut) R A

REFEVHRELERFI5H  BEER
STRC B A B AR R (Sptih) R WA - BD

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)

a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of

the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by

HKFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (CONTINUED)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus

agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 will have material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective reporting

periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 "Leases” and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases

and leases of low value assets.

2.

ERFTIRZETEETK
HMEEN([BEBMBRELE
8l1) @
BEEVKREEREI55K R
BEFEHNZWA Ll
ZE—RF BEGHMAERHES
MR ELEAFEISRZEE  REAH
BHBEEZHMN ZERABEREAZ
ZRAZARGFAIREZ ERAES -

ARREERY NAKREAETEYH
BEEUFBISHKALSEERMN R
- ARAREEL N FRHEREL Y
5 24E R S5 1555 % 4 40 B 2 S B A AR
ZWAZERHEERSRERERTE -

pul

ERAMBHREENF16KHE
-
BEPBHRE LA FE 165 BHBIHEA
RABANRERFRERE | A—
AR - EEMBREEE16
SAEME - BERRBER LB I7H
(MR8 KRR -

TRV MEER 1658 R ATH B E

EEHAEFPEFKRESEERREE
H-BRRMEEMMEEEREN &
LHEMBEMENZEZAABAASSR
RIBEBE - WAREAEANMAHER
REAEEERMEARERNRAENR -

HEAEERAERAR
20175 3R

79



e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion

which will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised the prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee.
The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be

presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an

operating lease or a finance lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 2 &= —

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group as lessee had non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$119,706,000 as disclosed
in note 28. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they

qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$20,214,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$9,335,000 as rights and obligations under leases
to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost and such adjustments are considered as additional
lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be

considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated

above.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Listing Rules”) and by

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain investment properties and
investments held for trading that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment”, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS

36 “Impairment of assets”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 2 &= —

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction

price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included

within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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—tEFT-HA=t—BLFE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 2 &= —

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the

non-controlling interest’s proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.
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Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial

recognition of an investment in a joint venture.
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A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of the
joint venture used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the joint venture other than profits
or loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of loss of a joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the

joint venture.
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An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment

is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group's investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have

been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from hotels accommodation, food and banquet

operations are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights

to receive payment have been established.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating lease is described in the accounting policy for leasing

below.
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Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based
on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element

and building element at initial recognition.
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Leasehold land and building (CONTINUED)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the property
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and building elements, the entire property is generally classified

as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the

Group's interest in a joint venture.
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For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an

asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.
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Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured

at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments is
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions. The share options vest
immediately at the date of grant and their fair value is expensed

immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred

to accumulated losses.
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interest are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather

than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment including hotel buildings held for
use in the production or supply of services or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at costs less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in

profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine

the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and

costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial

liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, available-for-sale (“AFS")
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
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Financial assets (CONTINUED) BERFF 0% ()
Financial assets at FV/TPL BBEmIENFIEETEZ M EE
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset EeRMBEEDNOREEERBRIG)ETE
is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL. REBEREATEEFNS  FHSH
EESWIBREBERKEATEAER
.
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: W& HRTIER  BemEEHSE
RFIEER :
e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in e HIERNTAKKREEMmMEA
the near term; or %
e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified e HRUTHABREXANLAEERS
financial instruments that the Group manages together and HERZE#HNEMIAAS —
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or o - B EH IR B BRI R
7
e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a e HUWIEERARHARIAZN
hedging instrument. H£THA-
Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains FRERRATEEFECEREER
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. NFEBEIR MEFFEMEELEZE
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any A EENERER - NiEmHE
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and is included RZWmSBEFEREN SR E ER
in the ‘other income, gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is Bz AR B A B - S ET A [ E Ah IR
determined in the manner disclosed in note 34c. A WamkEBEEIBEEAN - R FEER
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Financial assets (CONTINUED)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets

at FVTPL.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period (see accounting policy

in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including amount due from a joint venture, trade and other
receivables and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial

assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been

affected.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be

objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

or

e  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial assets

because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in

subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated

under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised

at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & —

—tEFT-HA=t—BLFE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

Derecognition (CONTINUED)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or

loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of hotel properties included in
property, plant and equipment

In considering the impairment loss of hotel properties included
in property, plant and equipment, the recoverable amount of the
hotel properties needs to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, the Group uses all readily available
information in determining expected cash flows generated by
the cash-generating unit to each of the hotel operation belongs
and they are discounted to their present value, of which the
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow forecasts
including whether these cash flow forecasts are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by the management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates, the gross profit margin or the revenue growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow forecasts, could affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect

the Group’s financial position and results of operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 2 &= —

Impairment assessment of hotel properties included in
property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

An impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the recoverable amount. Where
the recoverable amount is less than expected, an impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of hotel properties was approximately HK$372,662,000 (2016:
HK$378,350,000) (net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss of approximately HK$280,775,000 (2016:
HK$220,097,000)). The directors performed impairment
assessment of the Group’s hotel properties, an impairment loss
of HK$14,772,000 was recognised during the year as their value
in use determined in this manner was estimated to be lower than

their carrying amounts.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties in the consolidated statement of
financial position are carried at their fair values at the end of
each reporting period as disclosed in note 16. The fair values
were based on a valuation on these properties conducted by
independent firm of professional valuers using property valuation
techniques which involve certain assumptions. Changes to these
assumptions and inputs would result in changes in the fair
value of the Group's investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in profit or
loss. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of investment

properties was HK$164,000,000 (2016: HK$192,000,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & —

Depreciation of hotel properties

The Group’s carrying amount of hotel properties as at 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$372,662,000 (2016:
HK$378,350,000). The Group depreciates the hotel properties on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of their remaining unexpired
terms of the leases and the remaining years of co-operative
period. The useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive economic benefits from
the use of the Group’s hotel properties. During the year, the
useful lives of the hotel properties have been reviewed and these

estimates are considered to be appropriate.

Allowance on trade and other receivables

The management regularly reviews the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables. Appropriate allowance for estimated
irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit or loss when there is

an objective evidence that the amount is not recoverable.

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts is
required, the Group takes into consideration the aged status and
likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only made for the
trade and other receivables that are unlikely to be collected and
is recognised on the difference between the carrying amount of
trade and other receivables and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted using the original effective interest
rate. Where the actual cash flows are less than expected, an
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables was HK$62,899,000
(2016: HK$184,350,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable from outside customers, net of discounts and
sales-related taxes during the year. An analysis of the Group's

turnover for the year is as follows:

Hotel operations income ST 5 4R A U A
Rental income e A

Segment information reported internally was analysed on the
basis of the types of services provided and activities carried out by
the Group's operating divisions. The Group is currently organised
into two operating divisions — hotel operations and securities
trading. The information reported to the Group's chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM") (i.e. executive directors) for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance is

focused on these operating divisions.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Hotel operations — hotel accommodation, food, banquet

operations and rental income; and

2. Securities trading — trading of equity securities.

WAERFABRBBEINETS ZHK
BAFEERTINMHEERBTIE XK
SERARFREZEXRBEONAOT

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$"000
—E—+tF —E—NREF
TR FET
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47,707 44,774
252,311 242,296
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

AT AAEERANEERARERE

BHE LD -

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable and operating segment.

BE-_Z—+tF+-A=1T-HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Hotel Securities
operations trading Consolidated
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
HERE BHEEE &®a
THET TERT FET

REVENUE PN 252,311 - 252,311
RESULTS ES
Segment loss excluding impairment 2 4EEE (R EIEY %

loss recognised in respect of Mes K& B MR

property, plant and equipment REEE) (7,780) 1,550 (6,230)
Impairment loss recognised ME  MBEREREZ

in respect of property, plant B #ERREEE

and equipment (14,772) - (14,772)
Fair value change of investments BIEEEREZAF

held for trading EEE - (39,264) (39,264)
Segment loss DEEEE (22,552) (37,714) (60,266)
Directors’ emoluments EE=We (7,223)
Interest income LB A 8,574
Decrease in fair value of WEMHEZ

investment properties NEEERD (41,529)
Finance costs mh & A A (1,066)
Central administrative costs and AR 1T UK AN R

unallocated corporate expenses ROBEEREZ (26,296)
Loss before taxation R 7% B E5 18 (127,806)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZ

REVENUE

RESULTS

Segment loss excluding impairment
loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Fair value change of investments
held for trading

Segment loss

Directors’ emoluments

Interest income

Share of result of a joint venture

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of amount due from
a joint venture

Decrease in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs

Central administrative costs and
unallocated corporate expenses

Loss before taxation

Hotel
operations
HK$’ 000
B JE A
FH&T

WA 242,296

ES
/‘*Hiﬁa( BIEME -

B RFEz BER

ﬁﬁréﬂa) (31,555)
BIEEBERAEZ AFEE

&4
5 -

DEEE (31,555)

EEH S
AT ON

Rl —RABDTLE
Rl —RAEATRE
BB R A8

REMERZ A FEERD

PRITBRARARD B
PERX

BT AT B 1R
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

—RETZA=1T—BLFE

Securities
trading
HK$'000

THET

(20)

(5,765)

(5,785)

Consolidated
HK$' 000

o=y
THET

242,296

(31,575)

(5,765)

(37,340)

(3,068)
14,088
(179)

(27,983)

(22,009)
(2,280)

(13,758)

(92,529)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & —

—tEFT-HA=t—BLFE

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments

are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note

3. Segment loss represents the loss from each segment without

allocation of directors’ emoluments,

interest income, share of

result of a joint venture, impairment loss recognised in respect

of amount due from a joint venture, decrease in fair value of

investment properties, finance costs and central administrative

costs and unallocated corporate expenses. This is the measure

reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities NTRAEERIRERLCEDHZE
by reportable and operating segment: ERBESI:
2017 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—E—tF —E—RF
FERT FHET
SEGMENT ASSETS PREE
Hotel operations B 5 48 455,477 468,640
Securities trading BHEE 22,383 60,000
Total segment assets DIEEERE 477,860 528,640
Investment properties REME 164,000 192,000
Available-for-sale investments At ERE - -
Interest in a joint venture R—REERRZHER - -
Amount due from a joint venture W —RE & AEIRIA - =
Cash and cash equivalents RekHFeZEEER 1,801,383 1,660,949
Other unallocated assets HEMARDAEE 30,849 153,421
Consolidated assets HREE 2,474,092 2,535,010
SEGMENT LIABILITIES STHEEE
Hotel operations B JE 5 99,361 93,502
Securities trading BHEE 8,828 9,354
Total segment liabilities DEBEARH 108,189 102,856
Tax liabilities HIEBE 76,874 79,048
Deferred taxation BAE T IR 41,154 46,583
Consolidated liabilities rERRE 226,217 228,487
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & —

—tEFT-HA=t—BLFE

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than

assets relating to investment properties, available-for-sale

investments, interest in a joint venture, amount due from

a joint venture, cash and cash equivalents and other

unallocated assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

liabilities relating to current and deferred tax liabilities.

2017

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Addition to property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2016 —E—RF
Hotel Securities Consolidated
operations trading Unallocated total
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
B BHEE R BC HAEAR
FHBT FHT FHET FHEIT
Amounts included in the rEN BRI ERE
measure of segment profit KN FEERA
or loss or segment assets: 2 FIE
Addition to property, Y - e Es R A AN
plant and equipment 14,243 - - 14,243
Depreciation of property, I - MBS RERE
plant and equipment I E 26,705 - 3,277 29,982
Gain on disposal of property, HEME « #es MR E
plant and equipment 2 Wa 3,628 - - 3,628
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the RNEBEMEEE ML EER—FE
PRC and Hong Kong. REH -
Information about the Group's revenue from continuing REBERBINBEP 2 FFELEEBK
operations from external customers is presented based on the A BB (BBELE
location of services provided in respect of hotel operations: T)ERINZEH :
2017 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—E—tF T -RF
FHERT FHET
Hong Kong B 96,343 93,656
The PRC i 155,968 148,640
252,311 242,296
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Geographical information (CONTINUED)

Information about the Group’s non-current assets presented

based on the location of assets is detailed below:

i 15 & B (4)

BRASEFRDEEREEMEHE
FIZEMFFINT

2017 2016

HK$’ 000 HK$" 000

—E—tfF —E—XF

F#T FHT

The PRC Ealle 553,329 566,113
Hong Kong BA 31,582 61,157
584,911 627,270

Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments.

Information about major customers and
services

There was no revenue from any single external customers that
contributed over 10% on the total sales of the Group during the

years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

No analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major services and
securities trading is presented as no discrete financial information
is prepared based on this analysis and the cost to develop it

would be excessive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

INTEREST INCOME 7. REWA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$" 000
—e-tf —T—x%
FExT FAT
Interest income on: JRE THIEE 28 EWA :
Bank deposits and other receivables SRITIF 3R N At 8 I BR 3Kk 8,574 5,339
Loan notes receivable BREREE - 8,749
8,574 14,088
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMgA - hEZREE
2017 2016
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
—e—+% e
FHET FHT
Fair value change of investments BIEEEREZ AT EEES
held for trading (39,264) (5,765)
Gain on early redemption of loan REBEREREREER 2 W
notes receivable - 8,371
Sundry income B A 625 2,756
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, HEME  HREREZ
plant and equipment (E8) ks 21) 3,628
(38,660) 8,990
FINANCE COSTS 9. WE R
2017 2016
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—E—+tF —E—RF
FExT FAT
Interest on other borrowings HMEEZHNE 1,066 2,280

HEHEIERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & £ —F —

+tE+ZA=+—HILFE

2017 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
—®-—tF —T—x%
FHERT FHET
Loss before taxation has been arrived BRELRTEEE kR N5 &R ¢
at after charging:
Depreciation of property, plant and M B RBEZTE
equipment 37,660 29,982
Auditor’s remuneration % AT B & 3,816 3,600
Cost of inventories recognised as EERAXE Z2FEKAR
expenses 23,222 17,616
Minimum lease payments paid in BENHEEME 2 ZEESTR
respect of rented premises 35,646 34,142
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) ZEME (HaE11) 7,223 3,068
Salaries and allowances (excluding e kR (TREES)
directors) 78,211 71,464
Retirement benefits scheme contribution BR@EHMFEMER (FBIEES)
(excluding directors) 6,062 10,464
Equity-settled share-based payment IRABE 2 IR X
expenses (excluding directors) (T"BIEESE) 9,610 -
Total staff costs B TRk ANB58 101,106 84,996
and after crediting: WEFA :
Gross rental income from shops in hotel  UBE/EMEAZEHE 2B KA
properties less negligible outgoings REEF N A (B ABA)
(included in revenue) 23,543 25,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2016: six) ENKENAE(ZE—FREFE: ~NB)E
directors and the chief executive were as follows: ERTHAHRZTAZHME0OT
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tHF+=-A=+—HLEE

Retirement  Equity-settled

Salaries benefit share-based
and other scheme payment Total
Fees benefits contributions expenses emoluments
HKS$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FeR RIKER URALE 2
ik HipEA at B ALK BUBR A 7R B ame
TER TER FET TR TER
Executive directors: WITES:
Dr. Yap, Allan EREEL 120 - - 1,677 1,797
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva* B 2L - 2,760 18 1,677 4,455
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BEfEE - - - 430 430
Independent non-executive directors: B FHITEES
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BEIEE 80 - - 107 187
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EBIE LA 80 - - 107 187
Mr. Sin Chi Fai KEEEE 60 - - 107 167
340 2,760 18 4,105 7,223

20175 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Executive directors:

Dr. Yap, Allan

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva*
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis

Independent non-executive

directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert

Mr. Sin Chi Fai

HITES:
EREBEL
BR¥G 2 L~
BRBEFEE

B IFITES :

WELRE
e B B S A
HEEEE

Fees
HK$’ 000

ke
TET

120

60
60
60

300

* Ms. Chan Ling, Eva is also the chief executive of the Company
and her emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by her as the chief executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their

services in connection with the management of the affairs of

the Company and the Group. The independent non-executive

directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as

directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director of the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for both

years.

Annual Report 2017

HE_ZT-—RE+-_A=1+—HILFE

Retirement

Salaries and  benefit scheme Total

other benefits contributions emoluments

HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Fek RIKAE A

E h 48 F T &It FEY

FET FHET FHET

- - 120

2,750 18 2,768

- - 60

- - 60

- - 60

2,750 18 3,068

* REBRLTTRARRTERAR M
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, except for
mentioned above, no other emoluments were paid by the Group
to any directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
two (2016: one) were directors including chief executive of the

Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosures

above.

The emoluments of the remaining three (2016: four) highest paid

individuals were as follows for both years:

Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses

Their emoluments were within the
following bands:

HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

BHE _ Z—+tFR-_Z—RF+_H
=T —BLEFE - BFREXFAIN - NE
ERESNEGIE T EMESIERM
AIMAREE & 2 BB A RBRERZ
M -

AEBAURSFMALS WA (=
T—RF: ) REZ(BEAREIT
BaaE)  EMec £ EXWE -

AEERAEEELNFH T (=
ToNF M) REHFMALZHE
mF :

¥ hHEMEN
BRAEFIFT B R
AR A4 E 2 AR B 2

ATAEEFZMEAR :

T T 21,000,000 7T
1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7T

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$" 000
—E—t& —E—AE
FHT FHT
2,795 3,364
54 72

103 -
2,952 3,436
2017 2016
—E—tx —EAE
1 3

2 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

Current tax: BVHAR: I8 -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax P ST
Underprovision in prior years MEFERETR
Deferred tax (note 25): RFERL IR (M 5E25) -
Current year REE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits arise in Hong Kong for both

years.
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate

of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Annual Report 2017

2017 2016

HKS$’ 000 HK$'000
—®—+t% —2-x%
TR THR
(6,164) (3,598)
(87) (100)
(6,251) (3,698)
8,809 3,033
2,558 (665)

HRAEERMEFELERBEEL
FERBEE A - B UL E|AEL BB NGB
Bt e

BREPBECEMRGSIE((REMEHR
D) REEMEBTOREMIRS] - - B
BRARRMEFEZHEH25% °

Hith B AR ES 2 HIRRAMADEE
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The income tax credit (expenses) for the year can be reconciled to

the loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

Loss before taxation

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
25% (Note)

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible in determining taxable profit

Tax effect of income that is not taxable
in determining taxable profit

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Tax effect of share of result of a joint
venture

Underprovision in prior years

Income tax credit (expense) for the year

Note: The domestic tax rate which is the PRC Enterprise Income Tax B e

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2 &= —

B 75t A1 85 18

&$m%
ZWE
BAFIEJE R v A B N AT HRL 2
Rz Hmise 2
A EE TE JE B 5 i 1) R
WAZ G2
RERZBBER BB E
AR AERZBIELEEE

R25% (P )

SHARRZ

AERZAMBERERZ BB E

BE—RAERAREIMBETE

BEFERETR

AEEZHREHESL (FRX)

rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is

substantially based is used.

B R AR M

Z—tHF+-_A=+—HIFE

AEFZHABHRER (FX) A
a N EL b 2 T W e R 2 BR AR B RS 1R 3 R

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: m

2017

HK$’ 000
—2-tF
TER

(127,806)

31,951

(6,533)

2,307
(8,400)

4,922

(21,602)

(87)

2,558

518

2016

HK$' 000
—E—RF
FaT

(92,529)

23,132

(9,251)

7,798
(8,426)

(100)

(665)

FEAARMBRSRNERBEY 2
TERBHAEREER 2HE

EEMFBRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

No dividend was proposed for the year ended 31 December
2017, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the

reporting period.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable

to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—BLEFE
BEZFIRMNEE - A 2HRBPERIA
PR R AR o

ARBBEAABREERERNREEEHE
TR T BUERTHE

2017 2016
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—E—+tHF —T—RF
THET FAET
Loss for the year attributable to owners ~ FA{EsI B EREAREFTEIE 2
of the Company for the purpose of KAREE AEMLER
basic and diluted loss per share (116,128) (86,438)
Number of shares
BHEE
2017 2016
—e-t% 2%
Weight average number of ordinary RETEERERNREEBEE Y
shares for the purpose of basic TR INEFHEE

and diluted loss per share

For the year ended 31 December 2017, diluted loss per share
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
because the exercise price of the options was higher than the
average market price of shares for the period and the assumed
exercise of the share option would result in a decrease in loss per

share.
Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 was

not presented as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

Annual Report 2017

789,211,046 789,211,046
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 915 ~ s R tE
Office
equipment
Hotel Furniture Leasehold Motor and
properties  and fixtures  improvements vehicles  machinery Vessels Total

HK$" 000 HKS'000 HKS"000 HKS"000 HK$" 000 HKS' 000 HKS" 000
(Notes)

Bl BE BAZRE
I REE  NEEB 5E R#E e At
T Fit7 TET AT T 7L T
(Ks)

CosT 223
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A-H 646,937 32,095 113,684 503 31415 35606 860,440
Additions HE - 2,281 10,932 974 56 - 14283
Disposals e - (18684 (357M) = (2077) (356060  (59,938)
Currency realignment LEaE (48490)  (1,126)  (4,251) 51 (1563 - (55481)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"E+ZA=1-A 598,447 14766 116,794 146 27831 - 759,264
Additions HE - 2,129 1,764 292 9 = 4,283
Disposals ik - (300) (5,378) - (939) - (6,617)
Currency realignment MERE 54,990 1,155 7,230 128 2,051 - 65,554
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tF+-A=1-H 653,437 1775 120410 1846 29,041 - 82481
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT TERAE
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~F-f-H 214303 28248 93656 431 2,08 26489 390,185
Provided for the year TEERE 22,198 1,191 3,161 90 215 307 29,982
Eliminated on disposals e - (18649 (3571) = (2,05  (29616)  (53,386)
Currency realignment hEHRE (16,404) (609)  (4,347) (47) (1,080 - (248
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"E+-A=t-A 200,097 10,181 88,899 a7 U8 - 313,79
Provided for the year rEREE 31,514 1,590 4,126 23 198 - 37660
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - 1) (5,366) = (907) - 6,550)
Impairment loss recognised ERINEESE 6,322 - 8,450 - - - um
Currency realignment hERE 2,84 868 6,122 9 1773 - 31697
At 31 December 2017 RZE-+5+-f=1-A 280,775 12362 102,231 798 25207 - N3
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2017 R-Z-t&+ZB=1-H 372,662 5,388 18,179 1,048 3,834 -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"E+-A=t-A 378,350 4585 27,895 952 3,688 - 415470

HEAEERAERAR
20175 3R 1 27
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum, after taking into account of their estimate residual value.

Hotel properties (comprising

land and buildings)

Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Office equipment and
machinery

Vessels

Notes:

Over the term of lease of land use
rights or the remaining year of
co-operative period, if shorter

10% — 20%

10% — 20% or the term of the
lease of land use rights, if
shorter

8.33% - 20%

20%

12%

A E¥ZE - Has

S SR DEY S S,

B REBREER  REKREEUATIIEF

YT E -

B 5 W) % RrERAECHE
(Bt FHIK A 1EER A R
REF) BEH (LUREE

BAEE)

R REE 10% — 20%

FAEMEEE 10% - 20%K T i
FREzHEFH
(AEBEEBE)

Y 8.33% — 20%

WAERME 20%

&L
e 12%
B A

(a)

Included in the hotel properties in the PRC is a hotel property
of approximately HK$152,305,000, net of impairment loss of
HK$6,322,000 (2016: HK$163,559,000, net of impairment loss
of nil) situated in Guangzhou, in which the Group holds land
use rights and property right of the hotel property for a term
expiring in January 2037, under the name of Rosedale Hotel
Guangzhou Co., Ltd. (“Rosedale Guangzhou”).

Pursuant to a co-operative agreement between Allied Glory
Investment Limited (“Allied Glory”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and the minority shareholder
(the "PRC Partner”) of Rosedale Guangzhou, the co-operative
period for Rosedale Guangzhou is 50 years commencing from
15 January 1987.

Annual Report 2017

(a)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(a)

(CONTINUED)

Rosedale Guangzhou is a sino-foreign co-operative joint venture
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China and its major
asset is a hotel property located in Guangzhou (the “Rosedale
Guangzhou Hotel”), which it owns and operates. The rights and
ownership of Rosedale Guangzhou Hotel would be transferred
to the PRC Partner upon the completion of the co-operative
period. Pursuant to the approval issued by the Foreign Economic
and Trade Commission (the “FETC"), Rosedale Guangzhou was
granted an initial co-operative period of 30 years and such
approval also stated that, subject to the satisfaction of certain
conditions, the co-operative period could be extended for a
further period of time but not more than 20 years. Rosedale
Guangzhou was then granted a business licence with a period
of 30 years which expired on 15 January 2017. Upon expiry of
the business licence, the PRC Partner refused to cooperate with
Allied Glory to jointly apply for the extension of the business
licence to 15 January 2037.

Allied Glory applied for an arbitral award (the “Arbitral Award”)
to restate the co-operative period to 50 years and require the
PRC Partner to cooperate in the application process of the
relevant licence of Rosedale Guangzhou for an extension to 15
January 2037.

On 3 May 2017, Allied Glory received an Arbitral Award issued
by the China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (the “CIETAC") pursuant to which the co-operative
period for Rosedale Guangzhou under the co-operative
agreement made shall be extended until 15 January 2027
and the PRC Partner shall provide all necessary assistance to
Rosedale Guangzhou in the application process for extending its
business licence.

By eE - (48D

€

BEMIAB AED FE AR KB ZE M
MBI ERELE HXT B
BERBUREMNZEEYE (&
I IE BB JE 1) T BE M 3A BB 5 B R
MIABHER RAEE - BN ABIE L
ZHENRFEREBRE EHTKE
BRETREEME REHIEER
SEEGR B2 E BEMNIBEN
NEEERR=TF  MZIET
A ENAETHREZERT &
TEHIE—FERNIZN _+FH -
BMABERMERGHN=+FHE
¥HBER-_T—+tF—HA+HEA
B - REFXHBERIK - PEBH
ERESRGERRARFEEERN
RIEPE—ZT=+F—H+ARB -

BERBFHAE ([BRE]D) UKE
EHMBEINER T+ A ERPEABH
BEBEMAENHENRTHE
Rt -At+hHZHFERRE
RAEE-

R-ZZE—tFRA=H A2&KH
FRBERECEBEZHREZE S ([
HZEEBg ) BENEAE Bt &
EREAREETHEMNBREAE
HAETREZE-_ZE_+F—A+HA
BREREHEERMNAERIEHR G
FREAXYRBRNBREFRARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(a)

(CONTINUED)

The Arbitral Award, being a final award, took effect on the date
of issue and is legally binding on all parties to the arbitration.
The PRC Partner had, however, refused and/or failed to
cooperate with Allied Glory to apply for such extension. Allied
Glory then submitted an application to Guangzhou Intermediate
Peoples’ Court (the “Intermediate Court”) for enforcement
of the Arbitral Award and the application was accepted by
the Intermediate Court in July 2017. The Intermediate Court
directed such application to Guangzhou Haizhu Court which
subsequently issued an execution order (the “Execution Order”)
to Bureau of Guangzhou Haizhu Industry and Information
Technology (“/BXEEHE TEMHKEMES(LHE") and Bureau of
Guangzhou Haizhu Market and Quality Supervision (“E/Mm/E
KEmEMESEEEER/") on 14 September 2017 enabling
Allied Glory to apply for the relevant business licence. On 30
November 2017, the Execution Order was suspended due to fact
that, based on the reply from the Bureau of Guangzhou Haizhu
Market and Quality Supervision, the unilateral application for
the extension of the business licence could not proceed as
it is subject to further re-submission with relevant extension
documents.

The management of the Group is currently taking appropriate
steps to enforce the Arbitral Award in accordance with all
applicable laws and regulations. As of the date of this report,
the renewal of the business licence is still being held up by the
PRC Partner and cannot be further proceeded. The management
is in the process of evaluating certain legal options so as to
obtain the extension of the business licence. However, should
the Group be unable to successfully extend the business licence
period, the hotel operations of Rosedale Guangzhou may be
affected and further impairment of the hotel property may be
required.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(a)

(CONTINUED)

Change of depreciation rate of the hotel property during
the year

As a resulf of the arbitral award issued by CIETAC on 3 May
2017, hotel property has been changed to be depreciated
according to the remaining 10 years of co-operative period with
effect from 1 January 2017. This change in depreciation rate
has increased the depreciation charge of the hotel property
held by Rosedale Guangzhou for the year by approximately
HK$9,540,000.

Included in the hotel properties in the PRC is a hotel property
with a carrying value of approximately HK$168,319,000 (2016:
HK$164,480,000) situated in Shenyang, in which the Group
holds land use rights and property right of the hotel property
for a term expiring on 28 April 2046.

Included in the hotel properties in the PRC is a hotel property
with a carrying value of approximately HK$52,038,000, net
of accumulated impairment loss of HK$17,496,000 (2016:
HK$50,311,000 net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$17,496,000) situated in Luoyang, in which the Group holds
the property right. The land use rights of the hotel property is
currently held by Luoyang Power Supply Bureau (now known
as Luoyang Power Supply Company of Henan Province Electric
Power Company of State Grid), a non-controlling shareholder
of the subsidiary holding the hotel property. Pursuant to a
land use rights agreement entered into between Luoyang
Power Supply Bureau and the subsidiary of the Group on 15
April 1999 (before the Group acquired the said subsidiary in
2004), Luoyang Power Supply Bureau agreed to permit the said
subsidiary to use the land upon a term commencing from April
1999 to April 2049 for hotel use.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group

incurred operating losses in hotel operations segment, and

there were certain adverse changes in the market and economic

environment in hotel operations located, the management have

reviewed the recoverability of the relevant carrying amounts of

these cash generating units (“CGUs"”), which is based on each

of the hotel operations located that generate independent cash

flows, and the recoverability of the relevant carrying amounts of

the individual assets of property, plant and equipment if their fair

value less costs of disposal is available, as appropriate.

BifeE : (&)
(@) (%)

FREBHEMREZITEER

HRMHEEZEER-_T—+tFHA
“HBEHHEFAE BT —tF—
BA—BR BEVEXEERABZE
EEAFRIBRIOFEINE - WIBITERE
WEEMEMNRERE ZBIEY X
2 BFHTER T 499,540,000/8 7T ©

(b) RHPBEZBEEMEDE —BEURE
[5 ™ BR M 18 49168,319,000/%8 7T (=
T — X4 : 164,480,000 75) 28
IEWE - ZBIE Y E 2 LR
FEEE#BAERFAEMF BB
RN ANFOMA=—+/\BEm-

(0 RHPBEZHEMESE —BEMLRE
F5 ™ BR T {8 #952,038,0005%8 7t (1K
Z2:HREE1817,496,0008 L) (=&
— 73 4F 1 50,311,0005 7T (30 6% R (&
B51817,496,000/8 7T)) HANEEFF
MERES2BEME -ZBIEDE
I ERAEREAREAZAEY
¥CHBARZEEBRBEIEHE T
BER(RBRAMIFTEAETHRAE
BIHEAG)IFE - BEREMEE
BRkASEZKBATAR— AN
FUMA+HA (RAEEE=ZZTNHN
FEUEEZM B R AR 5T 2 L fE
BER:E SETEXERREE
FMMBARFERAZ LI FHH
—AANFNAREE_TMAEN
ALk EBIERR -

BHE_ZTZ—tHFR-_ZT—-—R"FT=ZA
=E+—BILFE AEERBELLES
HEAKEEE WERNBAEEBRE
THREBRFBHRE T AR EE &
BEEENAEREAEM([REE
BN ZHEEREEZTROEE
mMEBARGCEEEMNIREEB IR
DMEBAEZRBIEFER - ARER Y
¥ MELRBEEZHAKREE (H
HRAFEERBEEKARRAM) (EA)
ZAWEIREmME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & —

—tEFT-HA=t—BLFE

The recoverable amounts have been determined based on higher
of fair value less cost of disposal or value-in-use calculations. The
recoverable amount of the CGU of each hotel operations was
based on its value in use and was determined with assistance of
Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent professional qualified
valuer not connected with the Group. The value in use calculation
is a discounted cash flow model using cash flow projections
based on five-year financial budgets, with reference to past
performance and expectations for market development, approved
by management and using a discount rate of 10.41% (2016:
10.27%). Cash flows after the 5 year period were extrapolated
using a 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate in considering the economic

condition of the market.

From the above assessment on each of the hotel
operations located in the PRC, the recoverable amounts are
HK$152,305,000, HK$203,760,000 and HK$59,000,000 (2016:
HK$218,100,000, HK$220,740,000 and HK$53,000,000) for
the hotel operations in Guangzhou, Shenyang and Luoyang, the
PRC, respectively. An impairment loss of HK$14,772,000 (2016:
nil) was recognised in relation to the hotel property located in
Guangzhou (allocating to the hotel property of HK$6,322,000
based on its fair value less cost of disposal and leasehold
improvement for the remaining of HK$8,450,000), as its
recoverable amount was estimated to be lower than its carrying
amount mainly due to the shortening of the co-operative period
of Rosedale Guangzhou to 15 January 2027 instead of 15 January
2037. There is no impairment loss identified for the respective
hotel properties located in Shenyang (2016: nil) and Luoyang
(2016: nil), based on the above impairment testing undertaken by

the management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

FAIR VALUE NFEE
At 1 January 2016 RZE—
Currency realignment ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%&
Decrease in fair value recognised in the profit or loss iNE=Ee

At 31 December 2016 RIE—
Currency realignment ﬁ%fﬁéﬂﬁ
Decrease in fair value recognised in the profit or loss RE=R

At 31 December 2017 N_=

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by
Norton Appraisals Limited (“Norton Appraisals”), an independent

qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

Norton Appraisals is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of properties in the relevant
locations. The fair value was determined based on the market
comparison approach that reflects recent transaction prices for
similar properties and also consider its term of operation up to
15 October 2023. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of
the properties the highest and best use of the properties is their

current use.

The Group’s investment properties represent a completed
complex for commercial use, which is situated on medium-term
land use right in the PRC. The Group holds the property
interest under operating lease to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Accordingly, the property interest held under
operating lease is measured using the fair value model and is

classified and accounted for as investment properties.

HK$'000

FET

~NFE—H—H 229,000
(14,991)

NEEERD (22,009)
NE+ZA=+—8” 192,000
13,529

NEEBERD (41,529)
—+&E+=-HA=+—H 164,000
AREBREWER -_ZT—+E+ A4
=t+—HBE= NE+-_A=+—H

ZAVEELAEAREYEREZS

RERBEXGHEMERERFEHEER
AR ([EHERFED RS 8 A S
ZIEEEE -

EHERIERTEAEMSEEER
BBEREEER RONAFGEERLE
MEEBEZER BEXIFERNIRE
A RBBUMETHKIEZTSLER
EEE YERAR-ZE_=F+A+AH
b2 EaFH o (AETAR E—FEM
RELEEE NEFZEVEZRF
BER ZEVERIEARRERER
HERA®E -

AEBZREMERECRRNZBRAGS
RE - DURPEZH Lt ERE -
AEBNEEHEREMEE D ARR
MeE R,/ REBEREE - AUt - UL
EHEREZMEERRNERRTFEE
REGTE - WHBRARINBIREDE -
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The following table gives information about how the fair value
of the investment properties is determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value

hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised

based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value oo

measurement is observable.

Fair value hierarchy

AVEEER

Level 3
E=4

Annual Report 2017

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
EETEREERAZE

Direct comparison approach

BELBE

The key inputs are:

TEHGAHER:

Price per square metre
of RMB5,200 (2016:
RMB6,600) taking
adjusting factors on
location and residual
operating period

FE 7 RERARES,2007T
(ZZ—RF : AR¥6,600
TT) AT REME R FIRE
EH PHERY

Significant unobservable input(s)

BEAEEBEEGANE

Adjusting factors:

TR

(@) ranging from 20% to 50%
(2016: 20% to 50%) on
location;

BEMLE M F20%%E
50% (=T —RF -
20%Z50%)

(b) 34% (2016: 42%) on
residual operating period
BT SHELH  34%

(ZZ—R5F : 42%)

TREJBREMERATFEBEZIEEE
(LERARABGEREZRBARRER)
NEERAFEBEAEGAZREB B
ZREEELATVEEHAEZATEEE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

EiBEOARBEAVEEZHE

A slight increase in the
adjusting factor on location
will decrease significantly
the fair value, and vice
versa.

MERERBEMEF &
BHATEEABRD -
[ 2 TRER ©

A slight increase in the
adjusting factor on residual
operating period will
increase significantly the
fair value, and vice versa.

Flepas L B R B b
A eBBATEEKNE
B RZIA -



For the year ended 31 December 2017 2 &= —

In estimating the fair value of the Group's investment property,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of
the Group’s investment property. At the end of each reporting
period, the management of the Group works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level
3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and
adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not
available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to

the board of directors of the Group.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of the Group's investment property is

disclosed above.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both years.

The resulting decrease in fair value of the investment property of
approximately HK$41,529,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: HK$22,009,000) has been recognised in the profit

or loss.

e R ERR MR

Z—tHF+-_A=+—HIFE

REFARBREMEZ A FEER -
AEEFERAIF M S A BREE - i
WEFE - R@ABERAIHRER  ~&H
ERRE=ZSTAERMGEMRAEER
BYRETHE NRE2HRALRE
AEEERERSERIMNSEHEMER
BiF BUNEFREBEEETERE
ABBEEE-_B/ERE=ZBRAFEEF
B-AKBEEEAZTELRAE_NE
ABE(ATER ARSI ERRE
ZEABIE) o W EE — R AR
AHER  NEEBRANAEZ=RE
ABEBZBER L HEERTEESR
EAEE) gnASEEESERMNE
ZIRE o

AMEEAEERAMEA T EEEHR
REEFERBAREZ AR BRE
THE -

RREFER BEBAE=RXEE
FERZER -

HEtEELEEHEZE_ZT—ttF+ A
ST BUEFEZRENELNTEE
B #941,529,0008 T (ZF — /N F ¢
22,009,000 7T) BRI & HER ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z—=F

Cost of investment — unlisted
Share of post-acquisition loss

and other comprehensive expense,

net of dividend received
Deemed capital contribution
— interest-free loan

Amount due from a joint venture (a)
Less: Impairment loss recognised (b)

e+ A=+ BLEE

FLEMEREZKAR
EHEEBRERREMEE S H
SillCAER oo

BIELE -RBER

e — K & & R RFIA(a)
B B HERIREEE(D)

(@) The amount due from a joint venture with principal of (a)

US$4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$35,000,000)
(2016: US$4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$35,000,000)) was unsecured, non-interest bearing

and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the

directors, settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur

in the foreseeable future. The directors considered that the

amount forms part of the net investment in the joint venture

and the amount of the capital contribution of HK$7,624,000

arising from the interest free loan was determined based on

the present value of future cash flows discounted using an

effective interest rate of 5% repayable in 5 years.

(b) As at 31 December 2016, the management identified an (b)

impairment loss of HK$27,983,000 recognised in profit or

loss due to poor performance of the joint venture and the

net liabilities position of the joint venture amounting to

HK$65,816,000 as at 31 December 2016.
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2017 2016

HK$’ 000 HK$’000
= TR
FTERT THET
(7,624) (7,624)
7,624 7,624
27,983 27,983
(27,983) (27,983)

Bl —REEARAREZAR
$©4,500,000% T (&
35,000,000 L) (=T — X
F :4,500,000FEC (HERY
35,000,000 7T)) A MIEA - £ 5
REETERH EFRAE L&
EBEBERBE &I E B RIE
ZHEBRER R RAREGEE - &
ERABAREBRNZELEDR
Az REFEN—HH MELE
BREE 2 &€ #7,624,000%
7T * Jh PAS % 2 B B Al & 8 35 K 2K
ReREMEBLCRAEMNEE @ A
REFAEE -

RZE-—RE+ZA=+—8"
EEEREaTRARBAEESE
27,983,000 - REA RZA &
RAZRBBERZAEE D AR
—E-RNE+-_A=+—BH5B
65,816,000/8 7T 2 & E/F# °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Az

Principal activities

Investment holding

REER

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016 the Group had interest in the RZE—ttFR_E—A"F+=ZA
following joint venture: =+—8B KNEEEBUT
s
Proportion of nominal
Place of incorporation/ Class of value of issued capital Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity Form of entity principal place of operation  share held held by the Group held by the Group
Rk REBERL AEBEAZ
4 B L0 IBEENY FaRaEH BRIRAZEELR RERLE IBER
2017 2016 2017 2016
Zg-t§  CI-AF CE-kE CI-pE
Star One Investments Limited liability ~ The British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%
Limited (*Star One") company (the “BVI")/the PRC LER
Star One Investments EREAAT EREBREE(EB&
Limited ([ Star One]) BrEel)/T8
Summarised financial information of the joint venture BEERNACHBEENEE
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s joint TXHEHINAEEEZE QA

venture is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

H>

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in

i

o

these consolidated financial statements.

Current assets MENE E
Non-current assets EMENEE
Current liabilities mE AR
Non-current liabilities EMEBBE

o
SRV

2017
HKS$’ 000
—E—tF
THERT

3,879

216,186

(13,284)

(318,203)

Al AR R TEARALR

Z B ERR
2 THHBENBRERRALRAAR
RBEBW RS ER R RN M WK T
FTREH -

CRUEGETE-IN

2016
HK$'000
—FB—RF
THET
3,879
227,145

(14,459)

(282,381)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

Summarised financial information of the joint venture BERNRIZHBEEFBZE (&)
(CONTINUED)

Major items included in the above: FYAEYETEER A

2017 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—E—+tF —E—RF
FHERT F#HT
Non-current assets ERBEE
— Property, plant and equipment — W% HERZE 216,186 227,145
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE
— Amount due to shareholders — FES AR SR IR 198,715 153,420
— bank borrowing —RITEE 119,488 128,961
2017 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
—®—tF T A
FHERT FHET
Revenue for the year FEIKA - =
Loss and total comprehensive expense FEBBEBREARZHEE
for the year (45,606) (50,926)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information L3S E R E AR S B TS Rk AR
to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture RZRAEERNA R REERNHER
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
2017 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—E—t5F —E—RF
FET T
Net liabilities of Star One Star OneZ & &5 (111,422) (65,816)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AN B JAStar One” A HERE 25
interest in Star One st 50% 50%
(55,711) (32,908)
Deemed capital contribution BIEHE-REEX
— interest-free loan 7,624 7,624
Cumulative unrecognised share of BihZAEARBEZ &af
loss of the joint venture RERE T 48,087 25,284

N & B A Star OneZ #EzE 2
BREE - =

Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Star One

Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Equity securities
Unlisted shares, at cost
Less: Impairment losses recognised

Amounts shown under non-current assets

Particulars of the Group’s major available-for-sale investments as

at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —T—REF
FHET FHT

A& A 75
JE LD - K ANE 63,877 63,877
o BERERRERSE (63,877) 63,877)
IRBEEBE AT - =
RIE—+tFR_ZF—R"F+_A=+—
B AEEZzFEAHEHEEREFBHOT

Interest attributable

to the Group Principal activities

AEEELER TEER

2017 2016

“B-tE 5%

25% 25%  Property
investment
nERE

6% 6%  Property
investment
NERE

Place of Proportion of nominal value
establishment/ Paid up capital/ of issued/registered capital
Name of entity incorporation registered capital held by the Group
R/ HRRE/ REEBEZBRORE/
ERZR R4 5 ZREE aREAEEZLE
'000 2017 2016
r ZE-tF —3-RF
ENRRHEREERAR The PRC RMB8,000 25% 25%
("EMEZ") (Note a)
EMﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁﬁw@ﬂ G AR¥8,0007
(TBMER]) (FEa)
More Cash Ltd. (“More Cash") The BVI US$10 6% 6%
(Note b)
More Cash Ltd. ( [More Cash] ) ERERRES 10%7
(Kiztb)
Notes: FieE
(@) Though a subsidiary of the Group holds a 25% interest in &/ (@)
$R 5%, the directors considered that the Group cannot exercise

significant influence on the financial and operating policies of
EEMERZ and accordingly, it is classified as an available-for-sale

investment.

More Cash wholly holds a subsidiary,

BINImEEERRA

Al, which is incorporated in the PRC and engaged in property

development in the PRC.

HAAREE —RMEBRAFEEIM
RF25% < s EEERAAEE

TREHBEMNRR 2B RELERER
THREATEN WEMNREZHES
BA—HAHEERE -

More Cash®2 & A — R H HiE M
R 2HWBAREMNIEEERR
ANAE ZMBRARRPENREE
BE o
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The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities established in the PRC
or incorporated in the BVI. They were measured at cost less
impairment at end of the reporting period because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates was so significant that the
directors of the Company were of the opinion that their fair

values cannot be measured reliably.

At 31 December 2017, the accumulated impairment losses of
the available-for-sale investments were HK$63,877,000 (2016:
HK$63,877,000) after taking into account of the financial

position of the investees.

Rental deposits for hotel
operating agreements

The amounts represented rental deposit paid in connection with
hotel operating agreements, which entitle the Group to manage
and operate a hotel exclusively in Hong Kong for a period of 6
years. The rental deposits are fully refundable upon the end of

the lease term.

The inventories were carried at cost and represent principally
food, beverages and general stores which are to be utilised in the

ordinary course of operations.

Annual Report 2017

—tEFT-HA=t—BLFE

BEEEHAEZESRES

u

bt 3E F R B R A BB SR
HRAREEAMAK L 2L ABRBET
ZHELIFTMBRABSFZRE - ARNZER
BZaBRATEEMAASEEN AR
REERRTEASEMITEFELTE
B WZEREN 2 WAL REFEEAE
ERUBEETE -

R-T—+tF+=—A=+—0 &tk
WRE AT ZHBARRE - AT EHER
&2 REDRE RS /63,877,000 7T (=
=T — N4 : 63,877,000/ 7L) °

2017 2016

HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
—E—tF —T—RF
FHERT T
19,800 19,800

EHREEBEREHEFTHRZEN
HeWe BAELEHAEETAKE R
M BREBRELEE-—RBEERH
NE-HeReIRBORREZER

= o

FEAKRATIER  TERATEBBIRR
TEAZEM Kmhk—KAm -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

B 5 JiE W BR 3K
HeRKEES
HiEUWARES &?ﬁiﬁm

Trade receivables
Rental and utility deposits
Other receivables and prepayments

5 I E Al W RR R

Total trade and other receivables

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its trade
customers. The following is an analysis of trade receivables by
age, presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting

period which approximated the respective revenue recognition

date.

0 — 30 days 0%230H
31 - 60 days 31260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days A0 H

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a
year, and the Group reviews the repayment history of receivables
by each customer with reference to the payment terms stated in
contracts to determine the recoverability of a trade receivable.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have good
credit quality at the end of the reporting period with reference to

past settlement history.

AR

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$"000
:g—tﬂi —_F— /\E
FTHER FET
7,095 8,371
1,342 3,087
54,462 172,892
62,899 184,350

AEBRTHESRP 2 FHREHA
30H - U T RE 5 EKRERTN 2 REE
REFRERAH (EAEKARER A
BE) 25 ZRED T -

2017 2016

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

—E—+tF —T—RE

FERT FET

6,222 6,669

637 1,169

150 367

86 166

7,095 8,371
AEBEENEMFZFR - BalbE

EPZERER UBEREFPZEER
RE-FEPFERIRBEEF R —
R MAREB2RE K FT5I 2 3R
B BREPEERUKER 2L A
ETEHRIRR 2AIRERE - AR
RAESERR 2RBEZRELE K
ERPERBT L RBHEREREZE
HRBERAEBERFEELR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$873,000
(2016: HK$1,702,000) which are past due at the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

21.

E5 R HEMEWERRR )

REBZESERERERBDE R
B T 18 49873,000/ 70 (=& — X F -
1,702,000 7)) 2 B ERKER - 25
BERWEFRERPLERES B -
BARE B m st bt (F R EEE RS
RARZEEHERUWERZ EEERY
EBEAZE  SEMERATKE - K
EEWEB RS ERITE KRR o

EEMERREZES EKVR
M2 RR iR

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$" 000

—E—tfF —E—XEF

T FET

31 — 60 days 31E60H 637 1,169
61 — 90 days 61Z290H 150 367
Over 90 days HBiB90H 86 166
Total @t 873 1,702

The Group performed assessment on individual trade receivables

and no allowance was recognised for both years.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 2 &= —

On 31 December 2014, the Company and two independent third
parties (the “Third Parties”) entered into agreements, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to provide a short term interest-free
advance of HK$75 million (the “Loan”) to the Third Parties for
on-lending to a target company (the “Target”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Target Group”) in order to facilitate an acquisition of
the entire equity interest in a PRC Company, which is an entity
established under the laws of the PRC and is principally engaged
in property leasing and management, and owns a parcel of land
in Zhuhai, the PRC. Simultaneously, the Company also entered
into a framework agreement that subject to completion of the
possible acquisition to invest an aggregate amount of HK$300
million for redevelopment of the land and properties of the
PRC Company. In order to secure the Company’s interest in this
on-lending advancement, (i) a deed of share charge was executed
over the entire issued share capital of the Target in favour of the
Company; and (ii) the Target has executed a deed of share charge
over the entire issued share capital of its subsidiary incorporated
in Hong Kong in favour of the Company, as the security to the

advancement for the Company.

e R ERR MR

Z—tHF+-_A=+—HIFE

R-ZET—WE+=-_A=+—H AR
AIEmMEBYE=" ([B=H1) AT
B Bt ARAIREME=FREM
2% B 8 5%75,000,0005 T ([ &
) AEETERAR(TEZERAFD
REWERB (BEEREE]) - UEH
WHE—RPBELQRZ 2 HBRAER - %
FERARA—RBEFRBEEERNICE
L FENEYMERERTEER W
TEFRBREHEA — 18 13 o B LR -
RABINEI L —AER G - sl
fEE TR E - & & 4 $£300,000,000
BT LEFRBERPBEAG 2 T EY
¥ - FAADNRIRLESERR S
ZHEAF - (VBEL—HRMEFZE
IARB AEZABBEREAREZHEE
TRAER: RHEZERFTEEFEIL—H
BDEIARE  UEARAATHABE
REB M 2 M B A 72308 81T
BRI - DAERAR R AR H B R 2K
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Group
and the counterparties further entered into the several extension
letters to further extend the repayment date of the Loan and the
Loan was extended to 30 June 2017. Details are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 31 December 2014, 31 March
2015, 30 June 2015, 30 September 2015, 30 December 2015,
30 April 2016 and 29 December 2016. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the directors have reviewed the recoverability of
the advance by taking into consideration of the current progress
of the Target in the acquisition of equity interest in the PRC
Company and considered to enter into another extension letter
with the counterparties to further extend the repayment date of
the Loan to 31 December 2017. If the formal agreement is not
entered into on or before 31 December 2017, the framework
agreement shall lapse with effect from 1 January 2018. Details

are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 22 June 2017.

On 29 December 2017, the Loan was fully repaid by the Third
Parties and no formal agreement was entered on or before 31
December 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, included in the other receivables were
certain unsecured and unguaranteed loans to independent third
parties of HK$73,158,000 with repayment terms within one year
and interest bearing from 5% to 9% (2016: 5% to 9%) per
annum. During the year ended 31 December 2017, all unsecured
and unguaranteed loans to independent third parties were repaid

on their respective due dates.

As at 31 December 2017, the balance represents mainly

prepayments and other receivables for operation use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 2. FEEERE
Held-for-trading investments include: BEEERERRE
2017 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—E2—t5F —E—RF
FHERT FHET
Listed securities LTS
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REBE L2 RAE 3 8,668 10,179
Equity securities listed in overseas REIN £ 2 RN FE 5 13,675 49,821
22,343 60,000

The fair value was based on the quoted bid prices of the

respective securities in active markets.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, no investments held for trading

have been pledged as security.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits carrying interest at prevailing market
interest rates ranging from of 0.01% to 1.3% (2016: 0.01% to
0.72%) per annum.

23.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

SIANE S REMBEMNEKERZKEBERRE
B 495,945,000 T (ZF — < &F -
5,565,000/ 7T) 2 B ZER&RHK - &
SEMRERR 2R AS R IREZ A

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
approximately HK$5,945,000 (2016: HK$5,565,000) and the
aged analysis of the trade payables presented based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

SR Z MR DATAOE

2017 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

—E—+iF —E—R
FERT FHET
0 — 30 days 0Z230H 3,485 3,411
31 - 60 days 31£260H 796 770
61 — 90 days 61£290H 528 545
Over 90 days @90 H 1,136 839
5,945 5,565

The credit period on purchases of goods ranged from 30 to
60 days. Included in other payables at 31 December 2017 are
advance receipt from customers of approximately HK$6,356,000
(2016: HK$6,113,000), deposits received for rented premises of
approximately HK$9,335,000 (2016: HK$11,285,000), payable
for hotel construction amounting to approximately HK$496,000
(2016: HK$496,000) and accrual for administrative expenses of
approximately HK$58,722,000 (2016: HK$51,399,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and

movement thereon during the current and prior years:

NTERAFERBEFEZ FERIT
MIBEBEAREE
Accelerated tax

depreciation on
hotel properties

HK$' 000

EIEMEZ

MEBETE

FAET

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RE—H—H 52,223
Currency realignment BB (2,607)
Credit to the profit or loss (note 12) s ABE (FFEE12) (3,033)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+-A=+—H 46,583
Currency realignment BERFE 3,380
Credit to the profit or loss (note 12) Az (H3E12) (8,809)
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+tF+=-A=+—H 41,154

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax losses
subject to the agreement of tax authorities of approximately
HK$596,274,000 (2016: HK$582,362,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of these tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, the unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$7,146,000, HK$21,114,000, HK$28,075,000, HK$25,613,000
and HK$439,000 will expire in 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and
2022 (2016: the unutilised tax losses of HK$12,237,000,
HK$8,609,000, HK$19,565,000, HK$26,016,000 and
HK$23,734,000 will expire in 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and
2021), respectively. The losses arising from overseas subsidiaries
are insignificant, which will expire after a specific period of time.

Other unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

X

—E—+FT-_RAR=1t—H AL
Bz REMHGE R (AEB %R

F 582,362,0005%77:) C A B AR
KA A o B RAETEF B & 2 & F
PR - EpZEREE B ERR
ERIEEE - RIBPEBBEERRE
BOBRZTE—NF ZT—NF =
T_TF ZFT-_—FRZTZ=F
B H 2 KB A RIS B 1B 40 /37,146,000
770~ 21,114,000 T ~ 28,075,000/
7T~ 25,613,000 7T % 439,0007% 7T (=
—NEF REAHBE 12,237,000
7 7T ~ 8,609,0007% 7T~ 19,565,000/%
JC ~ 26,016,000 JT }%23,734,0007% 7T
BORR=_ZT—+&F - ZT—\F
T-NF —ZE_ZEFR-T-—FF
Hy) o BHNHT B A R E A B8R T
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$173,238,000 (31
December 2016: HK$86,830,000) in respect of the impairment
of property, plant and equipment, fair value loss of investment
properties and impairment of amount due from a joint venture.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.

RERPERE  AEERDE - HE
REBE s RE REMEZLAFER
ERUARER-—RAEEARAIREZR
B A AR E K &= £ 49173,238,000
BT (ZE—ARFTA=+—8:
86,830,000/ 7T) ° A N KA BE B J&
FB R M IE B R 2 AT HURE R
£ F & A R A HURE A = B
RELHBEE -

Authorised: ERE

Shares of HK$0.01 each at 1 January RZE—R"E—H—8"
2016, 31 December 2016, 1 January —E-R"E+ZA=+—8"
2017 and 31 December 2017 —E—tF-—HA—HK

—E—+tHF+-A=+—H
FREE0.0178 7T 2 I

Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:

Shares of HK$0.01 each at 1 January RZE—R"F—H—8"
2016, 31 December 2016, 1 January —E-R"E+ZA=+—8"
2017 and 31 December 2017 —E—+F—-A—-HRK

—E—tFt=A=t-8
SREHE.0IET 2R
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 30 May 2013 and is valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last
condition to the Scheme was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject
to early termination by the Company in general meeting or by

the Board.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Options”)
to any eligible employee (including executive directors) and
any non-executive director of the Group or any entity in which
the Group holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”), any
supplier of goods or services to the Group or any Invested Entity,
any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity, any consultant,
adviser, manager, officer and entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity, and any shareholder or any member of the Group
who has contributed to the business of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity (the “Participant”), as incentives
or rewards for their contributions or potential contribution to the

Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares
subject to any other schemes of the Company, is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date
of adoption of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless
the Company obtains an approval from shareholders in a general
meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the
Scheme Mandate Limit so refreshed must not exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
refreshment by shareholders. Nevertheless, the maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Options granted and not yet exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company from

time to time.

RABR - E—=FHEA=+THERAT
—IRBERES (T3] - FFER=
Z—=FXA=ZHGralz&E& —EBK
HEmzBH) B tFRERE-F
TZFEAXNAZAL EEARBERR
RELREZTGRFEILRIN -

AEEEREARR A MBEALEFELR
BEEERRMZASERARERFER
AEm s TMER((REBER]) ZEM
EEREE (BREATESR) REME
HWITEF EARAKEREIMNREER
BRERHERIXRB 2HER  AREX
EAERZERNETS  MAEEHER
REBREHTE RABEIEMOMEX
BRZEMBEER BAA KB -1
BABNER HAKEREMNKRER
B2EBEHRRMZ ANRBEEABIRSK
EMKE AR RN EBEMKE REIK
EAREERMBITERE S 2 A
BA(28EE]D)ROERE (TRBRE])
VAR AN X B 2 Bt PAYE 7 2R R X ] %

R4 8 R AR 2 B ] E At B A M =T &
AITERN M ARBRERTEREDA T
BT 2B AE - NMERIBRRAFTE
ERARARSETRMNZ10% ([5 8%
R - BRIFARBEFBBIRERER
RE LHEE T SIRERE - R
FH T RERETSRBRRILE
FHERARARBDETRMNZ10% ° &
BEME REFERAREEFMEMmLRE
P ARt BIR 1 i8 R1T 62 2 P R A e
BTERATERITAARZ&HRNE
B TREBARRTHEHETRN 2
30% e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

The number of shares of the Company in respect of which
Options may be granted under the Scheme and other share
option scheme(s) of the Company to any Participant in aggregate
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue, without prior approval from shareholders in
general meeting with such Participant and his/her associates (as

defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting.

The acceptance of an Option granted under the Scheme must
be taken up within 21 days from the date of grant and to be
accompanied by payment of the consideration of HK$1.00. The
Options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine which shall not be more than 10
years from the date of grant and subject to the provisions of
early termination thereof and the Board may provide restrictions

on the exercise of an Option.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 65,600,000 share
options were granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme, representing 8.3% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the date of grant. The above share options vested

immediately at the date of grant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

Details of specific categories of the options are as follows: BERRRE I TEREEEOT
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price
& BH SEAH TR TEE
24 April 2017 24 April 2017 24 April 2017 to 23 April 2022 HK$0.59
—E—L+F —E—LF —E—+tFHAZ+HEAE 0.597% 7T
MAZ—+mHmA MA=+mMmA T _FWAZ-Z+=H
The following table discloses movements of the number of the THREBSERDEERFRNMBAR
Company's share options held by the eligible participants during RIBREZ A S
the year:
Outstanding Granted Outstanding
at 1 January during at 31 December
2017 the year 2017
R=B—+tF R=B—+tF
—A—8 +=A=+-—H
Category of participants SHEEER e R AT HE FRRE i R ATE
Directors BF - 19,100,000 19,100,000
Employees EE& - 46,500,000 46,500,000

= 65,600,000 65,600,000

Exercisable at the end of the year ~ F R A[7{F 65,600,000

Weighted average exercise n#EFETEE (Bx) N/A 0.59 0.59
price (HK$) i A

The estimated fair value of the Options granted on 24 April 2017 R-CBE—tHFNA-_+THOARBZHE

at the date of grant is HK$13,715,000. ERARBRHBHBZEHETLAFEES

13,715,000/ 7T °

20175 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & —

—tEFT-HA=t—BLFE

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial model. The

inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price HK$0.59
Exercise price HK$0.59
Expected volatility 41.12%
Expected life 5 years
Risk-free rate 1.114%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price movement over the
previous one year. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on the management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$13,715,000
(2016: nil) for the year ended 31 December 2017 in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different

variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

RERPLERE  AEBRESETA
B EERO A RREREMRIES
AHE o WEREZREBENT ¢

2017 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
—E—+tHF —E—RF
FERT FHT
Hotel properties B JE ) 3

Within one year —FR 39,921 39,645
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRF(BREERWE) 79,254 118,800
119,175 158,445

Other land and buildings HihtRiEF
Within one year —F A 531 1,405
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEEFRAF(BIEEERTE) - 1,957
531 3,362

Operating lease payments for other land and buildings represent

rentals payable by the Group for office use.

For hotel property in Hong Kong, leases are negotiated for six

years.

Hit T M F 2 RL2HEONRIEARE
EnmAERERNzES -

BREEDEANBERPRAF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28. K& AN ELE )
(CONTINUED)
The Group as lessor rEBEEAREHBAA
Property rental income earned during the year was approximately FRNBER 2 ERSK AN A
HK$47,707,000 (2016: HK$44,774,000). 47,707,000 Lt (=& — N &F

44,774,000 7T) ©

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RERPALERE  ANEBEBLEINE
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments 4 NREBEEBETAIBEZREREAD
under non-cancellable operating leases for retail shops within the THEHBEAREE+E2HEBEED

hotel properties for an average term of 2 to 10 years in the PRC: LN EEFEZRKRSZEBONL

2017 2016

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

—E2—tF T —RF

FHET FHET

Within one year —FR 4,739 4,195

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EEELTF(BEERWE) 7,114 6,688

More than five years hFI& 3,058 3,825

14,911 14,708

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
1 54 Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

The Group has retirement schemes covering a substantial portion
of its employees in Hong Kong. The principal schemes are defined
contribution schemes. The assets of these schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of

independent trustees.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all its
new employees in Hong Kong employed therefrom or existing
employees wishing to join the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme
at 5% of relevant payroll cost. Subject to a cap to monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000, which contribution is matched by
employees. The only obligation of the Group in respect of MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the MPF

Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The amounts charged to profit or loss represent contributions
paid or payable to the schemes by the Group of approximately
HK$6,080,000 (2016: HK$10,482,000).

AEBRABIBEREREENKEE
g 2B/ ERBKFE - %F
BBERAKEZEENDH UES
TR WHBIETEAZES -

ok Dk
== =r

BE-ZTTTF+-_A—HR XEEA
FTEBZABHE2EEREENARESR
meg ki RERFTE ([RESFE]) 2
RERB2MBE ST E - RIEE T E
1R 15 58 ] 14 A 18 & 5t &1 R B 1\ 58 I D
BertaERERAM kBB ZE
ERASEZEESH  WESHREF
B WEHBVEEAEH - RERES
SEIZRA BEERHEEEARBES
SEER BEREE M- % 2K - & A
B A LR £30,0007% 7T« {E B I TE
AR - REB LR TE S 5 &I —
ERETDRERESFTEELRE

2B -

AEETEMNBEARZEESRPEEK
FERZBERNEHAEKE  ZF
MEBARARESHME TASLAR
REMEER REANREES - K
SEZRRBAFEIE —EEZRE
TEH R E 2 5K

BEZMBRZRE  BAEEENHE
N F 518l 2 3 496,080,000/ 7T (==
— 7N 10,482,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

29.

30.

31.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions (2016: nil), which arose upon employees leaving
the retirement benefit schemes and which are available to reduce

the contributions payable in future year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Related party balance and transaction

There was no transaction with related party during the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 nor outstanding
balance with related party as at 31 December 2017 and

2016.

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of key management members, which are

directors of the Company, was set out in note 11.

LITIGATION

On 27 October 2016, the PRC Partner filed a civil lawsuit at the
Intermediate Court, against Allied Glory in respect of a claim for
profit sharing in Rosedale Guangzhou of approximately RMB9.6
million. Allied Glory submitted a statement of objection to the
High People’s Court of Guangdong Province (the “High Court”)
and received a conclusive judgement dated 2 August 2017 which
was issued by the High Court with the legitimacy of the objection

filed by Allied Glory and the civil lawsuit was dismissed.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

29.

30.

31.
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables and prepayments
Investments held for trading

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

FRBEE

ES T g
KRB AR ZRE
& s Bt B B SRR

REBEE
FE U I /88 2 R 3R IR

H A R TR R R A 3R

FIEEBEZRE
RelkReFEEAR

REBAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g—+t% L i
FBT FIBTE
409 483
239,764 -
1,216,201 653,365
1,456,374 653,848
357,165 640,952
1,832 104,669
5,593 6,580
154,035 15,129
518,625 767,330
8,578 934
458,230 456,472
466,808 457,406
51,817 309,924
1,508,191 963,772
7,892 7,892
1,500,299 955,880
1,508,191 963,772
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=-Z—+F+-_A=+—HIFE
Share  Share options Special  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HKS 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
R 3% E BRERE BRI G 2 ESR am
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2016 R-B-xF-A-A 1,360,752 - 658303 (567,845 1,451,210
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEER
expense for the year ZHATAE - = = (495,330) (495,330)
At 31 December 2016 and R=Z—7"$+-A=1+-H
1 January 2017 k=F—+F—F—H 1,360,752 - 658,303  (1,063,175) 955,880
Recognition of equity-settled HERARRAZ A
share-based payments - 13,715 - - 13,715
Profit and total comprehensive REERMR
income for the year 2ENELR - - - 530,704 530,704
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF
+-A=1+—H 1,360,752 13,715 658,303 (532,471) 1,500,299
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the REBEZERERBE RS BEBRERE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while mEEERETE  BRASEZES
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation AFEEE 288 TRREFERANED
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy o AEEEREBRIKHE FFZMER -

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash REEBZEARRERERERRESE
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, BEAREAQRBEE ARG (B
comprising issued share capital, share premium and reserves. EBITRA BROBEKFEE) -

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a RABESTFFRITEREE - B
semi-annually basis. As part of this review, the directors consider B Ao REEFEZEREARKARESE
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of BEARFME 2R - BEEFHEBRE
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group EOASEERBRERE  BTHR
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of 7 EBREKG  BITHEBHIELRIRE
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the BEREA - HEEBEAREBIELTE -

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

34a.

34b.

3. xR T A

Categories of financial instruments 34a. €I AEHR
2017 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—E—+tF —E—REF
FExT FAT
Financial assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERRERER(B2ER®
and cash equivalents) MIE&EEHRB) 1,861,437 1,841,465
FVTPL FRBEREATEEE
— Investments held for trading - BEEERE 22,343 60,000
1,883,780 1,901,465
Financial liabilities ==
Amortised cost BEEH PR 24,232 26,956
Financial risk management objectives 34b. MBEMEEBEFERK

and policies

The Group’s management monitors and manages the
financial risks relating to the operations of the Group
through internal risk reports which analyse exposures
by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate

risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the

manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

R

AEBEEREEAMARBRE
(B E DA E R R R 212
BEENNERKERERE
BREXGHEHHERR -
ZERREET SRR (B
SRR - B R R R E A E
RER) FERRIREBE
TR -

AEE SR T EAEZ BB
BREEEEGERBER
277 A O o

HEAEERAERAR
20175 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & —

Market risk

(i)

(ii)

Annual Report 2017

Foreign currency risk management

The Group does not have significant foreign
currency sales and purchases, therefore exposure

to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to other receivables which bearing fixed
rate interest. The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances (note 23). The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management of the Group
will consider hedging significant interest rate risk

exposure if the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates on bank
balances. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of
reporting date were outstanding for the whole

year.

—tEFT-HA=t—BLFE

75 R B

(1)

(i1)

Sh I JE i R

2 5 B0 DA MBS 1T
BEREE  MUEAR ZIME
[ B 4R 1 o

FIEER EHE

AEEZ N FEEFE
& B B2 E S A fih FE Uk BR
RE@ - o AEEZ
BemefxmRka
SBERITHE® (HF23) A
e RNEBEZREMERN
ERBREEEF NIRRT
R FIEZKE -

N5 E B RIS AT
WATETAE DY
HAERB - A - A&
BEREEBRTERE
R HREREZ M EERE -

AT BURE D TR IE
THRHEZNXERE
RBIDITE - TIRER
2 W HE A RE B ARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interest rate risk management (CONTINUED)
Sensitivity analysis (CONTINUED)

A 25 basis point (2016: 25 basis points) increase
or decrease in variable-rate bank balances is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
the management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If interest rates
had been 25 basis points higher and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would decrease
by approximately HK$1,356,000 (2016: loss for the
year decrease by approximately HK$1,131,000).
The management does not expect a significant

decrease of interest rate.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of inherent interest
rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect

the exposure during the year.

5 e B (&)
(i) FIEmEEEE(E)
B E ST ()

RABREZEEEAE
| & A &R T2
SERITHE8A Z25ME K 2

T — N4 ¢ 25fEEE)
ZEMERD - HERE
%%\J%ﬂﬁmﬁzaﬁ

""""" YEH Z 711l o e Fl =
A2 EES - MAAAHE
fth B B M BIIAREE

BHEE_T—tE+=
A=+—RALEEZE
B g R 2 41,356,000
BT (ZTE—RE:KF
J£ & 18R 2 491,131,000
BIT) - BIEREIE A R
N EHE T

EEERR  ARNFRHE
P 2 LB A BE R BR
FAMESZ AR - Bt
HREIMARERLRA
FEN = B o
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Market risk (CONTINUED)

(iii) Other price risk management

Annual Report 2017

The Group is exposed to equity price risks
through its investments in listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group’s equity price risks are
mainly concentrated on listed equity securities

quoted in the Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price

risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower, loss
for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
decrease/increase by HK$1,865,000 (2016:
HK$5,010,000) as a result of the changes in fair

value of investments held for trading.

—tEFT-HA=t—BLFE

5 e B (&)

(i)

Bt (B 157 2 &
AEBRETRARE
ZIRERARRARER
B\ - EEEREER —E
SaTRARRZEER
AEELERRE A&EH
ZEAEREREZE
TREBIAREZ L
MRS E 55 ©

HRE ST

AT BRE o i Th iR 1B
RERBEBHEY 2K
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MR A B LA T B
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt and debt investment at the end
of the reporting period end to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider

that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group does not have concentration of credit risk as
at 31 December 2017 in the opinion of the directors of

the Company.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had concentration
of credit risk on aggregate advances to third parties
amounting to HK$75,000,000. The Group’s advances
to third parties mentioned above have good credit. An
internal credit assessment process was conducted to
assess the potential borrower’s credit quality and define

credit limits by borrower.

15 B = &

RZE—+tF+A=+—
H A&EBEEHFBTEES
BEBRReMEEZEEME
AEESIMBERMESZ
RAEERR - KRS Bk
BRI ZEEE 2 REE -

EREEERR  KNEH
EREEZR—/NE BEE
EEERE FEEHEIET
HMEREF  AERFERD R
RMEFE G - Y Bl BAEIE - it
Hh AEETTEHNZERE S
BEEREBRER 2 MELE
RrzalE£8E  UREKREH
TR Bl & R 1R B 78 BB (B /S
Bepltins  ARFEER
RAEEZEERERE XER

RZE—R"E+=—A=+-—
CAEECZEERREF
RETFTE=Z A Z2BREHE
75,000,000/ 7T ° Lt A & H
BRYTE=ZF22FEEBRIFRE
& mAREENHIERFATA
ARHEEEERAZEEE R
RAEBHRAZEERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=-Z—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

Credit risk (CONTINUED)

Also, the Group was exposed to credit risk in respect
of certain loan receivables included in other receivables
amounting to HK$73,158,000 as at 31 December
2016. The Group had concentration of credit risk
as approximately 77% of the total loans as at 31
December 2016 was due from four borrowers. The
aggregate balance due from these four borrowers
was HK$57,000,000 as at 31 December 2016, which
was neither past due nor impaired, of which the
whole amount was considered recoverable given the
management considered the financial background and
financial condition of these borrowers. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding loan
receivables to minimise credit risk. The management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to the credit
risk are monitored on an ongoing basis. Impairment
allowances on outstanding loan receivables are
determined by an evaluation of financial background,
as well as financial condition of and the anticipated
receipts for that individual account, at the end of the

reporting period.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks and securities broker with

good reputation.

Other than above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk at the end of the

reporting period.

Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The Group does not have unutilised banking facilities in

both years.

Liquidity tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the

undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate

at the end of the reporting period.

REE T ERETE
E=Z2 8 ARPETARE
By REEE YERBIAE
ZRBELRARERSE - LA
NEEEASHEH FHEK
EHESURRDHESER
ZHRE - ARBREERTREZ
il ROTBRELFEREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 3. TR (&)
34b. Financial risk management objectives 34b. MBEBMEEEZERK
and policies (CONTINUED) ®®)
Liquidity risk management (CONTINUED) REETE R EE (&)
Liquidity tables (CONTINUED) B EHZ* (&)
Weighted On demand Total Carrying
average or less than  undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 year cash flows 31 December
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
RER AARE +=A=+-H
METHFR = HF-FR mEARE ZEHE
% AT THEL FET
2017 —B-tF
Non-derivative financial liabilities T4 &@MEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNER - 24,232 24,232 24,232
Weighted On demand Total Carrying
average or less than undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 year cash flows 31 December
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REX ABRE +-A=1+—-AH
INHE 35 7= F—FR MELR ZEHEE
% FHEL TER TEL
2016 2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities JfT£&@MEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMER - 26,956 26,956 26,956
1 66 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 %Eﬁf?*tiJrfﬂ =t+—HLEFE

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and

financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
RUTHEAZALER

Financial assets

SHMEE “B-t&+-A=t+-H —E-R"FE+-A=+-H

Investments held for  Listed equity securities  Listed equity securities

trading in Hong Kong in Hong Kong
- HK$8,668,000 - HK$10,179,000
Listed equity securities  Listed equity securities
in overseas in overseas
- HK$13,675,000 - HK$49,821,000
RIFEERE BB FmRAES BB FhRAES
- 8,668,000/ 7T -10,179,0007% 7T
8o ERAE S B ETIRAE S
- 13,675,000 ¢ - 49,821,000 7T

There were no transfer in the fair value hierarchy during

the year.

AKERGEBARENAE
EFASBEERSRAMBY
AFEEZER -

KU IEIREER 2N FIEEE
BZAEKETHEER
AEELFIEE

ERPH/RE - NEEE
NEMEERATEEE -
ETMEERTE
BE2EBETE(LERMEA
ZREETERBABE) -

Relationship of

Valuation Significant unobservable
Fair value technique(s) Unobservable inputs to fair
hierarchy and key inputs  input(s) value
ELBREBAA
AYE HEFER EREE YEBEAY
EHER IERAYE BEWARE EEZBR
Level 1 Quoted bid N/A N/A
prices in an
active market
F—Hh EEMS TEA TEA

BEARE

FARFEEERZEALEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=-Z—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 3. R T A ()
34c. Fair value measurements of financial 34c. ERIECZAFEER

instruments (CONTINUED) % (48&)
Fair value of financial assets and financial W = BT N B
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on B EZ B EERTHE
recurring basis BEZLFIEE
The fair value of other financial assets and financial EmemEEREMBEZA
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally FTEERBELEBENZ CEE
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow AN RZLBAREREDINE
analysis. TE °
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying ARAREERE  RNERE0%
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities WMERTIRBEKATFTEZ SR
recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated financial EERcHBECFERERR
statements approximate to their fair values. FEERE -

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 5. B R ELE CEBEHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRV ERmETHEE 2 AEFHAE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash ) BERSLIERSEFH ARE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EHEAZAEENEBESRED KRk
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in KR REKeRNANER 2GR ER
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows EXNDEARE TSRS REZAG -

from financing activities.

Other
borrowings
HK$" 000
Hitfg &
FET
At 1 January 2017 R—ZT—tH—H—HR -
Financing cash flows MERERE (1,066)
Interest expense FEREZ 1,066
At 31 December 2017 R-F—tF+-_HA=1+—8 -
1 68 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Name of company

DA BB

Allied Glory Investment Limited
("Allied Glory")
RRREBERAR([ER])

Apex Quality Group Limited (“Apex”)
Apex Quality Group Limited ([ Apex )

Asia Times Limited

Asia Times Limited

Benchmark Pacific Limited

Benchmark Pacific Limited

E-Concept Ltd.
E-Concept Ltd.

HMH China Investments Limited
HMH China Investments Limited

I-Global Ltd.
I-Global Ltd.

Lucky Million Investments Limited

Lucky Million Investments Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration

REMRA LB R B

Hong Kong

0

The BV
KEERAERS

The BVI
ABEBRES

The BV
REEBERES

The BVI
ABEEBZES

Bermuda
BRE

The BVI
REEBRES

The BV
REEARES

Issued and paid
up share capital/
registered capital

BRITRAR
BRA/EREE

HK$2

2%

US$5,548,172
5,548,172% T

Us$100
100 7T

Us$1
E

US$1
[E

CAD$1,152,913
1,152,913/ %

US$1
1%

Us$1
(B

e R ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

ATRR Bt FR_FB-—RF+=

A=t+—HBA&R

Effective interest in
issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Group

2017 2016

% %
ARBBHORITRE

BRMES2 KRS

—e-t& —T-AF
% %
735 735
735 73.5
89.4 89.4
89.4 89.4
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
735 73.5
73.5 735
100 100
100 100
89.4 89.4
89.4 89.4

AZEEMBRRFE:

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEEBREXMHE

Investment holding in the PRC

R BB

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

RERER

Investment holding

REER

Trading of securities in overseas

RBIEEES

Investment holding

REZK

Trading of securities in overseas

RN E B 5

Investment holding

REEKR

20175 3R



Name of company

DEER

Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel
Company Limited*

BEEKEXEEER DA

Rosedale Hotel Group Limited

HEEESEERAR

Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou Co., Ltd.
("Rosedale Guangzhou")**

BNABBEEERAR ([EMBEL

Rosedale Hotel International Limited®

Rosedale Hotel International Limited®

Rosedale Hotel Management Limited

NEBEEERERAR

Rosedale Park Limited

Rosedale Park Limited

The Rosedale Luxury Hotel &
Suites Ltd.###
HEEX (L) AR DA

Shenyang Hotel Holdings Limited
TR E R 1D B R A ]

Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

Place of
incorporation/
registration

SRS B R it B

The PRC

FE

The BVI

RBHEBARES

The PRC

FE

The BVI
KBEARES

Hong Kong

e

Hong Kong
&

The PRC

FE

The BVI
KBREBRES

Issued and paid
up share capital/
registered capital

ERTRAR
BA/FEmE S

RMB 145,000,000

A R #145,000,0007T

Us$1

1%L

US$11,500,000

11,500,000% 7T

US$1
1%

HK$2

28T

HK$2
28T

US$20,00,000

20,00,000% 7T

Us$100
100% T

Effective interest in
issued share capital/
registered capital held
by the Group

2017 2016
% %
AEEBEERTRES
EfMERBRER
—B—t& —ZE—XRE
% %
60 60
60 60
89.4 89.4
89.4 89.4
72.7 72.7
72.7 72.7
100 100
100 100
89.4 89.4
89.4 89.4
89.4 89.4
89.4 89.4
100 100
100 100
84.9 84.9
84.9 84.9

Principal activities
and place of operation

IREXBRERGE

Hotel ownership and operation
in the PRC
KA ERE REEEE

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREER

Hotel ownership and operation
in the PRC
RAEEE RELBE

Investment holding

KEER
Hotel management in
Hong Kong

REBBEERE

Hotel operation in Hong Kong

REBZEHE

Property investment in the PRC

RAENERE

Investment holding

REZRK



Name of company

DEER

Shengyang Limited
Shengyang Limited

Shropshire Property Limited

REMERRRA

Success Billion Limited

Success Billion Limited

Rosedale Hotel Shenyang
Company Limited**

BGINEEEBR D R

WHS Marine Services Limited

®

Place of
incorporation/
registration

SEM AR S B R it B

The BVI
KEERRES

The BVI

REBERREE

The BVI

REEARES

The PRC

&

Hong Kong

)

Issued and paid
up share capital/
registered capital

ERTRAR
BA /M E S

US$1
(EH

Ordinary — US$10
Preference -
US$1,000

T@ER - 10X
BSERR - 1,000% T
us$1

(E

RMB 168,000,000

A E#168,000,0007T

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000/ 7T

This subsidiary is directly held by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

& The subsidiary is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture.

#  This subsidiary is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture.
Allied Glory is entitled to recoup its total investment (including
capital and interest) from the after-tax earnings of Rosedale
Guangzhou before any amounts are distributed. Thereafter, the
after-tax earnings of Rosedale Guangzhou are to be distributed
at 80% and 20% to Allied Glory and other joint venture partner

respectively.

###*  The subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned entities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

Effective interest in
issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Group

2017 2016

% %
AEEBEERTRE

EfMEAR EREDS

—B-tf —E-RE

% %

89.4 89.4

89.4 89.4

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

84.9 84.9

84.9 84.9

100 100

100 100

Principal activities
and place of operation

IREXBRERGE

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding in the PRC

R R & R

Trading of securities in
Hong Kong
REBEEES

Hotel ownership and operation
in the PRC
RAPERE REEHEE

Holding of leisure boat in
Hong Kong
REBF A L

© ZWBARBAAREBEERR M
BHEHMH BN B RADE RS -

t B ARABTINRESERT -

# o OZHBRARAR—RTIAIESER
Al o EBMIORE 2 BRI IL & A 1E D Ik
ERRIER - ARBELTIEHE
2HRE (BREEARME) - 21& -
J& ) 30 B8 2 B Wi 14 & M 8 LA80 % Ko
20% 2 LI 3 B 0 Ik T & R R A A

ABBLE -

e ZWBARRINEBELE -
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The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

No debt securities have been issued by any of the subsidiaries

during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of
these subsidiaries operate in the BVI. The principal activities of

these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities of business

ETREBED EERFMA LR

Investment holding The BVI

RE R REBEBARES
Hong Kong
o

Inactive The BVI

N E B REERRES
Hong Kong
B
Others
Hh

Others The BVI

Hh EBERRES
Hong Kong
N
The PRC
B

Annual Report 2017

—tEFT-HA=t—BLFE

EERRLERMIAKE 2B AR
AEBZEEHEERABERE

E-BEERRAINEMHMBARZFE
2L RIEBNITE -

FA - REEANE AR ETERE

e

Il A

m

Principal place of incorporation

WAL RE - AR AHEMERA
BYHFEEMBLAR - LEHRBR
AFERRBEB RS LE - HFEW
BEARCEEZEBHMNT
Number of subsidiaries
2017 2016
MEARZER
—ZE—+tF —E-RF
11 10
1 _
6 9
4 4
1 1
3 3
5 5
2 2
33 34
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZ=ZZT—+tHF T+ _A=+T—HIEFE

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries TREINFEGEREERER 2 AE
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests: FEEEMBRA 2T
Proportion of
ownership interests and
Place of Principal voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary incorporation place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERREREZRRRRS
WRARAR ERA LB IEERBE RREELE AREFERERZER i FERER
31122017 31.12.2016 31122017 31.12.2016 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS' 000 HK$'000

Z8-tf =t SieE “R-tE “TRF R-tF = e
t=A=t-B t-A=t-R +ZA=t-B +-A=+-B tZA=t-B +-A=+-H
TR TEn TiEn TER

Apex and its subsidiaries The BVI Hong Kong and
The PRC 10.6% 10.6% 1,592 (4,568) 154,503 152,911

ApexRENBAR AREAREE  ARRTE

Other individually immaterial subsidiaries

with non-controlling interests 37,153 39,607
ERFRRES 2 AR5

FEANBARA

191,656 192,518
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

Summarised financial information in respect of Apex and its WHEEAREIERER 2 Apex X ETB A
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out RIZHEERBAMIT - LB ER
below. The summarised financial information below represents WMERERE A ATEEE -

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

—g—tF B

+=A=+-B +=A=+—8

TET FHET

Current assets mBEE 1,321,638 1,284,424
Non-current assets EMEN B E 353,128 369,438
Current liabilities mBEE (126,126) (113,983)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (41,105) (45,287)
Equity attributable to owners of Apex Apex#E B A FE (5w 1,303,072 1,289,603
Non-controlling interests of Apex Apex3EE IR #E w 154,503 152,911

Non-controlling interests of Apex’s Apexit & R~ 7z JE 12 i #E 7

subsidiaries 49,960 52,078

Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE=—ZE—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Major items included in the above: BEZEZIEE
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
—®—tF —E—AF
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—8
TERT FHET
Current assets mENEE
— Loans to fellow subsidiaries -ERTREKBAF 744,748 724,250
— Amount due from ultimate holding - FEM S AR IR R RIRIR
company 458,004 458,007
— Bank balances and cash - IRTTEHRRIAS 99,278 82,588
Non-current assets EMEBEE
— Property, plant and equipment -ME HERZE 333,328 349,638
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BE-Z—tF #HEZZT—X~F
TEEEF=E FT=ZHA=T—E
IHFE IEFE
FEx FAET
Revenue WA 222,558 217,771
Interest income and other income A B U A K E AU A 22,134 21,998
Expenses 3 (258,671) (259,727)
Loss for the year AFERE (13,979) (19,958)
Loss attributable to owners of AKNE A AEGEE
the Company (7,787) (16,143)
Loss attributable to non-controlling ApexIETE iR 4E 25 FE (5 B 18
interests of Apex (923) (1,914)
Loss attributable to non-controlling ApexHi B 2 7 2 FE1E A
interests of Apex’s subsidiaries B EE (5,269) (1,901)
Loss for the year REEEE (13,979) (19,958)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=ZFT—+tF+ A=+ —HILFE

Major items included in the above: EXBiEzZEEEAR -

Other comprehensive income (expense) RRABER ARG EAMEE KR
attributable to owners of the Company (i)

Other comprehensive income attributable  Apex3E# A% 4 25 & {h £ b & W 2k

to non-controlling interests of Apex
Other comprehensive income attributable ApexHf B A 7] < FF 12 B% # %5 B 15

to non-controlling interests of Apex's Hih2mEKka
subsidiaries
Other comprehensive income NEZHM KRS ()

(expense) for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense) AAEHEB AEGEE2E K
attributable to owners of the Company (%) #B%

Total comprehensive income (expense) ApexIEIE iR = FE (L 2 H W s
attributable to non-controlling (M) #®5E

interests of Apex

Total comprehensive (expense) income Apexff & A &) 2 FE1E AR 7 2= FE
attributable to non-controlling H2E(FAx) kmEsE
interests of Apex’s subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income AEE2EWNE (FX) B8
(expense) for the year

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [ 3F 122 B& 4 25 Fr < A% &

Net cash inflow from operating activities & EK 2L R AFE

Net cash outflow from investing activities & /A& 2R & mH F5E

Net cash outflow from financing activities Bt& /A& 24 i F5E

Net cash inflow (outflow) BemACRL) F5E

Annual Report 2017

Year ended
31.12.2017
HK$'000
BE-_Z—t#&
+=—A=+-—H
HFE

FHET

21,251

2,520

3,151

26,922

13,465

1,596

(2,118)

12,943

16,108

(3,616)

12,492

Year ended
31.12.2016
HK$'000
HE-Z—RF
+=-—A=+—8”
IFFE

FHT

(22,388)

(2,654)

2,752

(22,290)

(38,531)

(4,568)

851

(42,248)

624

(15,094)

(14,470)



Revenue

(Loss) profit before taxation
Income tax credit (expense)

(Loss) profit for the year

(Loss) profit for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

L' ON

BAiAT (E18) & A
B e (RX)

AREE (FE) &M

AEE (B8 s

BT IIA LT

RRREE A
FEREIR R

BERE
BERERE

RRBHEEA
FE1G s
FEIER R

2017
HKS$’000

—B—+tF
FHET

252,311

(127,806)
2,558

(125,248)

(116,128)
(9.120)

(125,248)

2017
HKS$’000

—B—+tF
FTHERT

2,474,092
226,217

2,247,875

2,056,219
191,656

2,247,875

BA SRR

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015 2014
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
—E-RF ZT—hF ZZT—ImF
FHET FHET FHET
242,296 235,412 406,647
(92,529) (119,811) 375,531
(665) (1,568) (2,600)
(93,194) (121,379) 372,931
(86,438) (105,098) 380,755
(6,756) (16,281) (7,824)
(93,194) (121,379) 372,931
As at 31 December
2016 2015 2014
HK$" 000 HK$'000 HK$" 000
R+t=—A=+-—8
—E-RE =ZZE—HFE ZZT—MOF
FHET FHET FHET
2,535,010 2,678,164 2,972,714
228,487 230,521 482,643
2,306,523 2,447,643 2,490,071
2,114,005 2,246,592 2,268,536
192,518 201,051 221,535
2,306,523 2,447,643 2,490,071

2013
HK$’ 000

—E—=F
FH&T

447,220

502,184
(59,086)

443,098

381,966
61,132

443,098

2013
HK$’ 000

—F—=F

THET

3,567,266
1,348,673

2,218,593
1,976,154

242,439

2,218,593
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Company
A F

Rosedale Hotel
Guangzhou Co., Ltd.

BMHEREEERAF
Luoyang Golden Gulf

Hotel Company Limited

BB Gk

Annual Report 2017

BIEBR AR

Address
3k

Rosedale Hotel & Suites,
Guangzhou
No. 348

Jiang Nan Da Road Central,

Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, the PRC

&M 3R B IE
m B & N

sz
7L K8 3485%

Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel
No. 319 Zhongzhou
Zhong Road,

Xigong District,
Luoyang City,
Henan Province, the PRC

&5 2K AT

TEAEE
BT
AL

AR AR 31957

Existing Use

BRAR

Hotel operation

REBERD

Hotel operation

RS

i

)

Site Area
it B E R

10,838.88
sg.m.

10,838.88
K

9,025.51
Sq.m.

9,025.51
FHK

Gross Area

BEM

46,865.83
sg.m.

46,865.83
FoK

21,269.18
sg.m.

21,269.18
F K

% Interest

EEED

72.7%

72.7%

60.0%

60.0%
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Company Address Existing Use Site Area Gross Area % Interest

DA i 3k BEAZ b 82 T HWEE EEEIL

Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Hotel operation 5,335.00 43,000.34 84.9%
Company Limited No. 99 North Station Road, sg.m. sq.m.

Shenhe District,
Shenyang City,
Liaoning Province,
the PRC

ESIHEEE AR A A 5 IR R T R AEIESER  5,335.00  43,000.34 84.9%
& oK oK
FHEEE
ES™
Y8 T &R
1t uh F% 9955

20175 3R
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Particulars of Properties

E T30

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REW=

Company Address Existing Use Lease Term

| 3k RERZ HEH

The Rosedale Luxury No. 1900 Tianshan Road, Vacant Leasehold with a term expiring on
Hotel & Suites Ltd. Changning District, 15 October 2023

Shanghai, the PRC

IHEEXE (LB ARARA FELEEm
RER
XKLL & 1900%5%

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

HEHs HER-_Z_=%+A
+HHBEw



Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Room 3401, 34th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

HEBEEZRBRA A

EBBTERANER1835AMP 03413401 =

Rosedale

MIX

Paper from responsible sources
REABENRMERNER

wliw%ecrg FSC™ C132597

www.rhh.com.hk
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